
 

Link to shared folder: https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/13IzbQesczW8YMaem3OM-wVS8f6bk7TF4?usp=share_link 

CONSERVATION COMMISSION  
AGENDA 

 
 
Monday, July 21, 2025 5:00 PM City Hall 2nd Floor Conference Room 

 
 

Commission Members 
 

Councilor Andrew Madison, Chair 
Councilor Robert Williams, Vice Chair 
Katie Kinsella 
Art Walker  
Barbara Richter 
Steven Bill 
Gary Flaherty 

Bob Milliken, Alternate 
Thomas P. Haynes, Alternate 
John Therriault, Alternate 
Alexander Von Plinsky, Alternate 
Kenneth Bergman, Alternate

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of Meeting Minutes – June 16, 2025 

3. Referrals 
a) Planning Board – Eversource T198 Project – Surface Water Conditional Use Permit  
b) NH Dept. of Environmental Services – 0 Ashuelot St. Drainage Project – Expedited Minimum 

Impact Wetlands Permit 

4. Public Hearing 
a) Acquisition of 3 properties located at 0 Gilsum Rd. for Conservation Purposes –  In 

accordance with the requirements of RSA 36-A:5 the Keene Conservation Commission will 
conduct a public hearing to evaluate whether to expend funds from the Conservation Land 
Acquisition Fund for the purpose of purchasing .73 acres, .97 acres and .68 acres of forested 
uplands located adjacent to Greater Goose Pond Forest. The properties are TMP numbers 
218-015-000, 218-013-000 and 218-003-000. 

5. Report-outs: 
a) Greater Goose Pond Forest Stewardship Subcommittee  
b) Invasive Plant Species  
c) Land Conservation / easement monitoring 
d) Pollinator Updates 

6. Discussion Items: 
e) Master Plan Update 
f) Outreach  
g) Budget – Request for donation from the Wantastiquet-Monadnock Trail Coalition 

7. New or Other Business 

8. Adjourn – Next meeting date: Monday, August 18, 2025 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/13IzbQesczW8YMaem3OM-wVS8f6bk7TF4?usp=share_link


DRAFT 

Page 1 of 7 
 

City of Keene 1 

New Hampshire 2 

 3 

 4 

CONSERVATION COMMISSION 5 

MEETING MINUTES 6 

 7 

Monday, June 16, 2025 5:00 PM 2nd Floor Conference Room, 
City Hall 

Members Present: 
Councilor Andrew Madison, Chair  
Councilor Robert Williams, Vice Chair  
Art Walker 
Gary Flaherty 
Katie Kinsella 
Barbara Richter  
Ken Bergman, Alternate 
Thomas Haynes, Alternate 
John Therriault, Alternate (Voting) 
 
Members Not Present: 
Steven Bill 
Bob Milliken, Alternate 
Alexander Von Plinsky, IV, Alternate 

Staff Present: 
Mari Brunner, Senior Planner  
  

 8 

 9 

1) Call to Order  10 

 11 

Chair Madison called the meeting to order at 5:04 PM.  12 

 13 

2) Approval of Meeting Minutes – May 19, 2025 14 

 15 

Revision: Lines 105–106, revise to read, “Mr. Bill asked if there was any progress on the City 16 

establishing a more formal program to address invasive species. Vice Chair Williams said he 17 

heard the City Council’s Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee would 18 

receive an update but had not yet.” 19 

 20 

A motion by Mr. Therriault to adopt the May 19, 2025 minutes as amended was duly seconded 21 

by Mr. Walker and the motion carried unanimously.   22 

 23 

3) Report-Outs: 24 

A) Greater Goose Pond Forest Stewardship Subcommittee 25 

 26 

Mr. Haynes reported that the Subcommittee met on June 13 to do a lot of remaining planning for 27 

summer, discussing normal topics like trails and signage. He said the bulk of the meeting 28 

focused on the spillway bridge; they received engineered drawings. Next, the Director of Parks 29 



CONS Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
June 16, 2025 

Page 2 of 7 
 

& Recreation, Carrah Fisk-Hennessey, would present the bridge plans to the City Council’s 30 

Municipal Services, Facilities & Infrastructure (MSFI) Committee on June 25, which should 31 

allow the project to continue moving forward.  32 

 33 

Next, Mr. Haynes shared that on June 7, the Subcommittee had its second Saturday volunteer 34 

day in the Park on National Trails Day. Three Subcommittee members led the group putting in a 35 

reroute on the big parcel near the water tower that the City acquired in spring 2024. Mr. Haynes 36 

said Saturday work for most of the summer was planned for that area because there were more 37 

trails to build. For example, the week after this meeting, a youth group would be coming to help 38 

build a trail via the Department of Parks & Recreation. Mr. Haynes expressed some hesitancy, 39 

having never led a youth group in trail building. He hoped to add some reroutes to a section of 40 

the Kingsbury Trail, which is furthest away from what most people use. The Commission 41 

thought Mr. Haynes would do great.  42 

 43 

Mr. Haynes also reported that the Subcommittee was still working on recommendations for 44 

creating new bike trails as a policy for the City.  45 

 46 

Mr. Walker also mentioned that Ms. Fisk-Hennessey had appointments to initiate the community 47 

funding aspect of the spillway bridge. Mr. Haynes agreed that part of the goal is for the bridge to 48 

be community supported and funded, since a lot of people would like having a bridge there. So, 49 

the Director of Parks & Recreation had taken that initiative.  50 

 51 

B) Invasive Plant Species 52 

 53 

Vice Chair Williams reported a successful invasive clearing at the North Stone Bridge on May 54 

19 and said that, after several years of clearing at this site, the Commission’s efforts had made a 55 

difference and other plants were coming back. Unfortunately, one of the other things coming 56 

back was Poison Ivy.  57 

 58 

The Vice Chair invited participants to the next event immediately after this meeting (6:30–8:00 59 

PM) at Ellis Harrison Park along Beaver Brook for the fourth year of invasive Japanese 60 

knotweed clearing. Vice Chair Williams had been working to keep a patch of knotweed cleared 61 

there all spring, stating it was doing pretty well. He purchased a number of plants using the $100 62 

allocated by the Commission in May 2025 and planted them in that location; the plants were 63 

doing well, and he would continue encouraging them along.  64 

 65 

Vice Chair Williams spoke about the Commissions discussion in May 2025 to donate $350 to the 66 

Keene Public Library’s Seed & Tool Lending Library to help with the Commission’s invasive 67 

clearing efforts. Vice Chair Williams spoke with the Library Director, Marti Fiske, who thought 68 

it was a great idea and had the Vice Chair look at what tools were already available, such as 69 

saws, clippers, and tools for digging. Those were the primary materials the Vice Chair had hoped 70 

to purchase. However, there were a few things Vice Chair Williams identified wanting to 71 

purchase that the Lending Library did not have: Parsnip Predator (specially designed shovel to 72 

cut invasive wild parsnip at the base) and electric pole saw (16’ tall to help cut invasive vines on 73 

high trees). Vice Chair Williams did not think those needs would total $350. He passed around a 74 



CONS Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
June 16, 2025 

Page 3 of 7 
 

handout with the materials he suggested purchasing. He did not think any other equipment would 75 

be needed with the remaining Budget. However, he said the Lending Library also provides 76 

educational materials, so he suggested donating the remaining Budget for newer resources on 77 

invasive species management.  78 

 79 

Mr. Bergman noted that Ladies’ Wildwood Park had long been a hotspot for Japanese knotweed 80 

but this year, the vast majority was dead. Vice Chair Williams said it was sprayed in fall 2024. 81 

Mr. Bergman said it looked like they might have missed a few patches, but the effort was great 82 

because the plants no longer had leaves on them. The Vice Chair agreed it sounded successful. 83 

He worried about all the other things that were supposed to be growing there were also hit with 84 

the herbicide but thought everything at Ladies’ Wildwood Park was likely too far gone to 85 

preserve. He recalled that area would be undergoing significant changes with the trees coming 86 

down as well.  87 

 88 

Chair Madison recalled the Commission wanting an update on the Invasive Species Management 89 

Plan that MSFI was working on. He wondered if it would be worthwhile to reach out and ask 90 

them to discuss it at one of their upcoming meetings or at least get an update from City staff. 91 

Vice Chair Williams agreed that he would like to get it on the MSFI agenda for a progress update 92 

now that Budget season concluded. Vice Chair Williams noted that Councilor Laura Tobin, 93 

member of the MSFI Committee, would be at this evening’s invasive species event and the Vice 94 

Chair would mention it.  95 

 96 

Mr. Haynes asked if there had been further discussion about having a City staff member 97 

designated as an invasive species specialist; he recalled the Commission submitting a letter to the 98 

City Council with this recommendation. Vice Chair Williams hoped it would be a part of the 99 

MSFI Committee update he was seeking. Chair Madison would reach out to the Mayor and ask 100 

him to add it to the MSFI Committee’s July agenda.  101 

 102 

C) Land Conservation/Easement Monitoring 103 

 104 

Ms. Richter reported that she received the books from a former Commissioner—two for specific 105 

easements and one very helpful resource guide, the latter of which she thought should be 106 

revamped for new members. The first easement was for a property along the Ashuelot River 107 

from the Stone Arch Bridge south—a 17-acre property protected to support the dwarf wedge 108 

mussel. The second easement was for a property at the top of Concord Hill behind the 109 

neighborhoods that comes down toward Beaver Brook Falls (north of the Washington Street 110 

Extension). Ms. Richter had not walked the properties yet but drove by. The Concord Hill 111 

property appeared really overgrown, so she did not know how to access it yet; she thought she 112 

would have to contact the Neighborhood Association but knew the property was still owned by 113 

the Shaw family. Due to the weather, etc., Ms. Richter did not plan to actually walk the 114 

properties for easement monitoring until the fall, which the rest of the Commission agreed was 115 

logical. She welcomed another Commissioner joining her in the monitoring.  116 

 117 

Ms. Richter wondered if these were the only two easements to monitor. Mr. Haynes thought 118 

there were a few other smaller parcels too, four or five total. Ms. Brunner encouraged Ms. 119 



CONS Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
June 16, 2025 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Richter to review a shelf of binders on the City Hall fourth floor. Ms. Richter agreed, wondering 120 

if those smaller ones might be association-held properties, like Schuyler Way.  121 

 122 

D) Pollinator Updates 123 

 124 

Mr. Therriault shared that this was the first day of Pollinator Week: June 16–22, 2025. He 125 

announced Pollinator Palooza at Ashuelot River Park on June 24 from 11:00 AM–2:00 PM, with 126 

activities around the park focused on pollinators; for example, in 2024 the Monadnock 127 

Beekeeper’s Association had a demonstration hive.  128 

 129 

Mr. Therriault spoke again about the large die-off of managed honeybees in the United States 130 

over the prior 12 months. The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) released preliminary 131 

results of their investigation based upon dissecting thousands of bees, mites, and hives. Mr. 132 

Therriault explained that the USDA found the Varroa mite (a threat to honeybees) developed 133 

immunity to amitraz, which had been the effective treatment for Varroa mite colonies. Now, he 134 

said backyard beekeepers would have to take a step back and reevaluate their processes. He went 135 

on to briefly elaborate honeybee reproduction—with queens, worker bees (female), and drones 136 

(male). Drones specifically have a 24-day egg-to-hatching length, which is vulnerable to Varroa 137 

mite brooding (egg, larvae, & pupae). Mr. Therriault reiterated the USDA’s preliminary results 138 

that amitraz was no longer effective for the mite.  139 

 140 

4) Discussion Items: 141 

A) Master Plan Update  142 

 143 

Ms. Brunner briefly reported that the Master Plan Steering Committee met on June 10 to begin 144 

reviewing the draft Comprehensive Master Plan. They scheduled one more meeting on July 15, 145 

when she anticipated they would recommend its adoption to the Planning Board and City 146 

Council. The last main opportunity for public involvement was the June 3 Future Summit. 147 

However, once the Master Plan enters the formal adoption process, there would be one final 148 

Public Hearing before the Planning Board.  149 

 150 

B) Outreach  151 

 152 

None discussed.  153 

 154 

C) Budget  155 

 156 

Ms. Brunner noted after votes at the May meeting, checks were submitted on the Commission’s 157 

behalf for donations to the Ashuelot River Local Advisory Committee ($150) and the Cheshire 158 

County Conservation District Farm Camp ($250), and for the plant materials Vice Chair 159 

Williams purchased ($100; see above). Before that, the Commission had already approved 160 

expending $950 in annual dues to the NH Association of Conservation Commissions and $200 161 

annual membership to Bee City USA. So, Ms. Brunner reported $350.00 remaining to be spent 162 

from the Commissions Budget before the end of the fiscal year.  163 

 164 



CONS Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
June 16, 2025 

Page 5 of 7 
 

i) Materials for Invasive Plant Species Program 165 

 166 

The Commission continued its discussion of donating the remaining funds to the Keene Public 167 

Library’s Seed & Tool Lending Library to help with the Commission’s invasive clearing efforts 168 

(see discussion above). Discussion ensued about the price list Vice Chair Williams provided for 169 

the Parsnip Predator and electric pole saw, together totaling $135, and Chair Madison estimated 170 

$20 for shipping, for a total of $155.  Chair Madison wanted to ensure the Commission allocated 171 

all of its Budget before it was returned to the General Fund at the end of the fiscal year. The 172 

Commission agreed the remaining funds could be used to update the Library’s invasive species 173 

resource materials for the public. There was consensus among the Commission about this plan to 174 

donate the remaining funds to the Library Collection for the Commission’s invasive species 175 

program supplies and public outreach materials. Vice Chair Williams noted public relations is a 176 

huge part of this project. 177 

 178 

Vice Chair Williams made the following motion, which was duly seconded by Mr. Therriault. 179 

On a vote of 7–0, the Conservation Commission designated $350.00 from its Budget to the 180 

Library Collection for invasive species supplies and outreach.   181 

 182 

D) Potential Land Acquisition - 0 Old Gilsum Road, TMP# 218-015-000  183 

 184 

Ms. Brunner noted she had been emailing several people about this process since the May 2025 185 

meeting. At this point, she thought the Commission technically needed to hold a Public Hearing 186 

to spend money from the Conservation Land Acquisition Fund; 10 days’ public notice required. 187 

Ms. Brunner recommended holding a Joint Public Hearing with the City Council. Chair Madison 188 

said it had happened before and Ms. Brunner agreed, citing scenic road hearings, for example. 189 

The caveat was the Council would not meet again until July 17 due to a holiday and then not 190 

again until August 21 because of its annual summer vacation. Chair Madison asked if the 191 

Commission should write a letter to the Council asking to purchase the land or do so on its own 192 

authority. Ms. Brunner said the Commission could, on its own authority, hold a Public Hearing, 193 

then enter a non-public session to vote on whether or not to purchase the land, then send that 194 

vote to the City Council. The City Council would then hold a non-public session to deliberate the 195 

purchase and vote.  196 

 197 

The City Council must be involved regardless, so Ms. Brunner recommended the Commission 198 

schedule a Joint Public Hearing with the City Council. She explained that in the Joint Public 199 

Hearing scenario, the Commission conducts its deliberation in a non-public session. Discussion 200 

ensued briefly as there was confusion about when the Commission would vote after that non-201 

public session. Ms. Richter asked if there was a rush; had there been any negotiations on the 202 

property yet? Ms. Brunner did not think there had been negotiations. Deputy City Manager, 203 

Andy Bohannon, got back to her about the property, stating it would be an important parcel for 204 

the City to acquire. However, Ms. Brunner was unsure if anyone from the City had reached out 205 

to the property owner. Chair Madison thought it would be best for him to request a conversation 206 

with the City Manager.  207 

 208 



CONS Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
June 16, 2025 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Chair Madison made the following motion, which was duly seconded by Vice Chair Williams. 209 

On a vote of 7–0, the Conservation Commission authorized Chair Madison to work with the City 210 

Manager to begin the process of acquiring the property at 0 Gilsum Road.  211 

 212 

Mr. Haynes noted that now there was more than one parcel for sale on the same side of that 213 

right-of-way, all of similar size, which he thought would be of interest for the Chair’s 214 

conversation with the City Manager. Chair Madison said he would email the City Manager the 215 

evening of this meeting to initiate the discussions.  216 

 217 

Mr. Bergman asked the easiest way to publicly access the lots. Chair Madison said Old Gilsum 218 

Road. Mr. Haynes advised the easiest way (shorter walk) would be the water tower road; park at 219 

the cul-de-sac at the end of Meetinghouse Road and walk to where the trail loops around and it is 220 

within 100 yards. Mr. Haynes added that the other lot Mr. Flaherty mentioned was a little further 221 

down Old Gilsum Road but on the same side and with similar wood stock.  222 

 223 

Ms. Richter asked if the Commission had land protection criteria to follow and evaluate when 224 

deciding whether to purchase land. Chair Madison said not really. Ms. Richter said it was 225 

something she could help with and that criteria could help guide these decisions and votes. Chair 226 

Madison said he would follow up with the City Manager and City Attorney before diving too 227 

deeply into that.  228 

 229 

Mr. Bergman recalled that he and Mr. Von Plinsky met with Anne McBride from the 230 

Monadnock Conservancy in 2024 and received their land criteria values, which he said were 231 

slightly different than what the City would have. He said the Commission struggled for a long 232 

time to develop a rational basis for justifying, and when it developed criteria or a longer-term 233 

plan, the Commission often reacted to immediate opportunities on the market, overriding the 234 

longer plan. He still had the materials from Ms. McBride and would forward them.  235 

 236 

Ms. Brunner displayed the Keene Conservation Commission Land Protection Criteria adopted in 237 

April 2018. She would send it to the whole Commission to consider if it needs revision.  238 

 239 

E) Annual Report to City Council 240 

 241 

Chair Madison recalled that the City Council adopted a policy in 2024 asking that City 242 

committees submit Annual Reports. The Chair offered to prepare the Report. No guidance was 243 

provided for what the reports should include, so Chair Madison planned to provide metrics like 244 

invasives pulls, outreach events, major land acquisitions, trail work, and progress at Goose Pond, 245 

etc. If any Commissioners had other details to include in the Report, Chair Madison asked them 246 

to email him. He would include the draft Report in the July agenda packet for the Commissions 247 

to review before submitting it to Council. Vice Chair Williams noted that Councilor Haas—248 

whose idea it was for the Annual Reports—reviewed the Commission’s work and might have 249 

drafted some of what Chair Madison mentioned; the Vice Chair would share that with the Chair. 250 

Chair Madison thought the Report was a good opportunity to provide the public with a concise 251 

record of the Commission’s work and build public support.  252 

 253 



CONS Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
June 16, 2025 

Page 7 of 7 
 

5) New or Other Business 254 

A) NHDES Standard Dredge & Fill Application: Eversource T198 Line Project 255 

 256 

Ms. Brunner said the City gets a lot of these documents that just have to be filed away. She 257 

received this one beyond the 14-day notice period but wanted to include it in the Commission’s 258 

packet, so it knew what was happening; it was beyond the period to submit comments. That said, 259 

the applicant would need a Wetland Permit for impacts to the wetlands and would be building 260 

temporary access roads to get there through the surface water buffer. So, Ms. Brunner said they 261 

would need a Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit, and the Conservation 262 

Commission would be a part of the process in a different context. 263 

 264 

Mr. Haynes asked when this work was proposed, and several Commissioners replied fall 2025. 265 

Ms. Brunner agreed, stating the developer (Eversource) had done a number of these projects and 266 

she thought they were basically on a rotating schedule; she thought the Commission would see 267 

several more in the future. Mr. Flaherty thought they had been diligent in the work. Ms. Brunner 268 

agreed, referring to the utility lines by Island Street as an example.  269 

 270 

Mr. Bergman shared a story from many years prior near Rt-101 when a pole with a cross piece 271 

appeared close to falling down and, even though Public Service of NH was called, they did 272 

nothing about it. When the pole came down in a storm and water puddles were everywhere, he 273 

said a worker was electrocuted and died. So, Mr. Bergman said these are important things to take 274 

care of and that tragedy might not have happened if they responded to their scouts’ reports. He 275 

went on to discuss the different structures in each state, as well as the new taller metal structures 276 

replacing the old wooden ones.  277 

 278 

Chair Madison did not think there was anything for the Commission to do as this sounded like 279 

Eversource’s standard maintenance routine. Ms. Richter noted Eversource was finally releasing 280 

funding for maintenance projects, so Keene could see re-build projects coming through. Mr. 281 

Bergman commented on the interesting Natural Heritage and Fish & Wildlife reports with 282 

leopard frog and wood frog sightings in the general areas that he contributed to.  283 

 284 

6) Adjournment 285 

 286 

There being no further business, Chair Madison adjourned the meeting at 5:45 PM. 287 

 288 

Respectfully submitted by, 289 

Katryna Kibler, Minute Taker 290 

June 23, 2025 291 

 292 

Reviewed and edited by, 293 

SMari Brunner, Senior Planner 294 



 
 

 
Corporate Office: Normandeau Associates, Inc.  25 Nashua Road  Bedford, NH 03110  (603) 472-5191 

www.normandeau.com 

July 8, 2025 
 
City of Keene 
Planning Board 
3 Washington Street 
Keene, New Hampshire 03431 
 
Re:   Conditional Use Permit Application  

Eversource T198 Line Project  
Keene, New Hampshire 

 
Dear Members of the Board: 
 
On behalf of Public Service Company of New Hampshire d/b/a Eversource Energy (Eversource), Normandeau 
Associates, Inc. (Normandeau) is submitting this Conditional Use Permit Application for the proposed 
Eversource T198 Line Project within the City of Keene. On behalf of Eversource, Normandeau is requesting 
consideration of a Conditional Use Permit Application for required wetland and upland buffer impacts in the 
City of Keene Surface Water Protection Overlay District. 
 
The T198 Transmission Line crosses through portions of Keene, Swanzey, Marlborough, and Troy for 
approximately 11 miles and the right-of-way (ROW) is approximately 150-ft wide. The proposed project 
includes the one-to-one replacement of twelve (12) existing utility structures along the existing T198 
transmission line in Keene, New Hampshire. The project is necessary to support current and future electricity 
demands in the region. The structure replacements were selected based on inspection of the transmission line. 
It was determined that these structures have reached the end of their life expectancy and must be replaced to 
meet current electrical standards. The existing wood structures will be replaced with weathered steel 
structures to increase the long-term reliability of the line. There are no proposed expansions of the ROW or 
construction of new lines associated with this project.  
 
The proposed work area in Keene begins just north of Route 101 and continues south to the Keene and 
Swanzey municipal line. The Project is in the vicinity of the Keene State College Athletics Complex and the 
Ashuelot Rail Trail, within a cleared and routinely mowed ROW. Natural cover in the ROW includes upland 
shrublands and emergent and scrub-shrub wetland habitats. As the Project is in the Agricultural District of the 
City of Keene, a 75-ft buffer applies to all wetlands in the project area. Additionally, the ROW is in the FEMA 
mapped 100-year floodplain of the Ashuelot River, which occurs outside of the ROW, to the east of the Project 
in Keene. 
 
Normandeau delineated and classified wetlands and surfaces waters in the vicinity of the project footprint, 
photographed resources, and recorded data relevant to wetland functions and values in 2024 with 
supplemental spot checks in early 2025. The wetland delineation was conducted in accordance with the United 
States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) Wetlands Delineation Manual using the Routine Determinations 
Method and the Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual as required by 
the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services (NHDES) Wetlands Bureau and the USACE. The 
wetland delineation and characterization were conducted by Normandeau’s New Hampshire Certified Wetland 
Scientists (CWSs): Mr. Benjamin Griffith (CWS No. 298), Normandeau’s Ms. Jamie O’Brien (CWS No. 329), and 



 Eversource T198 Line Project 
City of Keene Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit 

 
 

 

Dr. Elizabeth Olliver (CWS No. 337), with additional support from Mr. William McCloy (CWS No. 268) in 2024 
and 2025. Photos of delineated resources in the Keene portion of the Project are available in Attachment D.   
 
The proposed project will include access to structures being replaced and the construction of work pads 
around utility pole replacement locations to stage equipment through both upland and wetland areas. The 
project proposes to use timber matting for all proposed work pads and access routes to minimize impacts to 
both wetlands and their upland buffers. Additionally, all existing wooden utility structure footings will be 
removed, to avoid loss of flood storage in the Ashuelot River’s 100-year floodplain.  
 
The proposed project requires approximately 56,122 sq. ft. of temporary wetland impacts and 102,332 sq. ft. 
of temporary 75-ft wetland buffer impacts associated with installation of timber mat access routes and work 
pads. Installation of replacement structures will require 140 sq. ft. of permanent wetland impacts and 300 sq. 
ft. of 75-ft wetland buffer impacts.  
 
A list of the required local, state, and federal level permits and/or coverages under permits and the status of 
Project’s applications for these is provided below: 
• City of Keene Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit (this application): Required for work in 

the City of Keene’s surface water protection overlay district, consisting of all wetlands and their 75-ft 
upland buffers. Under review.  

• City of Keene Floodplain Development Permit: Required for work in the 100-year floodplain of the 
Ashuelot River in Keene. To be submitted to and approved by the City of Keene Floodplain Administrator.  

• NHDOT Driveway Permit: Required for access to the ROW off NH Route 101. To be submitted to and 
approved by NH Department of Transportation. Planned submission is Fall 2025 for access in 2026.  

• City of Keene Temporary Street Access Permit: Required for access to the ROW off Krif Road. To be 
submitted to and approved by the Public Works Department prior to the start of work in Keene. 

• City of Keene Excavation Permit: Required for excavations in the City of Keene. To be submitted to and 
approved by the Public Works Department prior to the start of work in Keene. 

• NHDES Standard Dredge & Fill Wetlands Permit: Submitted on 5/28/25, review in process. Copy of 
approved permit to be submitted to Community Development Department prior to start of work in 
wetlands. 

• NHDES Alteration of Terrain Permit: Submitted on 6/10/25, review in process. Copy of approved permit to 
be submitted to Community Development Department prior to the start of any work in Keene. 

• NHDES Shoreland Permits: None required for the work in Keene, as all work will be outside of the 250-ft 
buffer of the delineated ordinary high-water mark of the Ashuelot River. 

• USACE NH General Permit (Pre-Construction Notification): Submitted on 6/3/25, review in process. Copy 
of approved permit to be submitted to Community Development Department prior to start of work in Keene 
wetlands. 

• EPA 2022 General Construction Permit: Development of Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 
and application for coverage in progress. Copy of final SWPPP to be submitted to the City Engineer for 
review and copy of approval for EPA 2022 General Construction Permit coverage will be submitted to the 
Community Development Department prior to the start of any work in Keene.  



 Eversource T198 Line Project 
City of Keene Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit 

 
 

 

Physical and digital copies of the NHDES Standard Dredge & Fill Wetlands and Alteration of Terrain Permit 
applications were submitted to the City of Keene. Documentation of receipt of all permits and approvals 
required for each jurisdictional area in Keene will be submitted to the City of Keene Community Development 
Department prior to the commencing of work in that given jurisdictional area.  
 
Per Article 11 of the Keene Land Development Code (LDC), a Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit 
(SWP CUP) issued by the Planning Board is required for a proposed use listed in Article 11.6.1 when the 
proposed use is located on land within the Surface Water Overlay Protection District and those impacts are not 
already covered under the jurisdiction of the NH Department of Environmental Services state issued wetlands 
permit or shoreland permit. See Attachment B for discussions regarding criteria outlined in Sections 11.6.2 and 
21 of the LDC, as required on the conditional use permit application form.   
 
Per Section 26.14.6 of the LDC, a sign obtained from the Community Development Department will be posted 
on the site providing notice of the use applied for and date and time of the public hearing a minimum of 10 
calendar days prior to the public hearing. This signage will be posted along Krif Road where the T198 
transmission line ROW and Krif Road intersect. As Route 101 is not a roadway which those traveling on it 
should stop and pull over to read the signage for safety reasons, no signage will be posted at this project 
access point. The signage will be returned no later than 10 calendar days after completion of the public 
hearing.  
 
Per Section 11.6.3.A of the LDC, this SWP CUP application is being forwarded to the Conservation Commission 
a minimum of 5-business days prior to the Commission’s next regularly scheduled meeting on Monday, July 
21st at 5:00 pm in Room 22 at the Keene Rec Center. A representative of the Project will attend this meeting to 
present the Project to the Commission and answer questions. 
 
Five (5) physical copies of the final plan set, printed on 11” x 17”, will be submitted to the Community 
Development Department within 180 days following issued conditional approval of the SWP CUP from the City 
of Keene Planning Board.  
 
See Attachments E and F for a USGS project location map and the construction plans for the proposed Project. 
Please note, the construction plans display both existing and proposed conditions. Exemptions from submittal 
of all other plan sets and technical reports listed on the CUP form is requested, as we argue they are not 
relevant given the nature of the proposed Project.  
 
Please feel free to contact Jeremy Fennell at 603-634-3396 (jeremy.fennell@eversource.com) or William 
McCloy at 802-855-1246 or at wmccloy@normandeau.com if you have any 
questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Senior Scientist 
 
Attachments:  
Attachment A - Conditional Use Application Form 

mailto:1ed.brisson@gmail.com
mailto:wmccloy@normandeau.com


 Eversource T198 Line Project 
City of Keene Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit 

 
 

 

Attachment B - Discussion of Articles 11.6.2 and 21 from the Keene LDC 
Attachment C - List of Abutters and Abutter Mailing Labels 
Attachment D - Photo Log 
Attachment E - USGS Locus Map 
Attachment F - Construction Plans 
 
  



 Eversource T198 Line Project 
City of Keene Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit 

 
 

 

Attachment A: Conditional Use Permit Application Form 
  





 Eversource T198 Line Project 
City of Keene Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit 

 
 

 

Attachment B: Discussion of Articles 11.6.2 and 21 from the Keene LDC 
  



 Eversource T198 Line Project 
City of Keene Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit 

 
 

 

 
Article 11.6 
 
In accordance with Article 11.6.2, as required on the Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit (SWP 
CUP) Application form, the following criteria are addressed below. 
 
A. Why proposed use or activity cannot be placed outside of Overlay District.  
The proposed work area is located within the existing cleared T198 transmission line ROW, which is generally 
bordered by development and forest communities. Due to these site constraints and existing structure 
locations, travel through and work pad placement in the Surface Water Overlay District is required.  
 
B. How encroachment into the buffer area has been minimized to the maximum extent possible, including 
reasonable modification of the scale or design of the proposed use.  
The project area is an existing ROW and consists of the replacement of existing utility structures which have 
reached the end of their life expectancy and must be replaced to meet current electrical standards. Therefore, 
there are inherent limitations to significant changes in the location and/or scale of work required in the buffer. 
Timber matting will be used to establish temporary work pads and access routes, thereby minimizing impacts 
to the wetlands and their upland buffers to the greatest extent feasible. Impacts to wetlands were further 
minimized to the extent practicable by having access routes follow existing upland walking trails and shifting 
structures out of or further away from wetlands were possible. Best Management Practices (BMP) will be 
implemented along work areas in the ROW to reduce/limit potential effects. 
 
C. How the nature, design, siting, and scale of the proposed use and the characteristics of the site, including 
but not limited to topography, soils, vegetation, and habitat, are such that when taken as a whole, will avoid 
the potential for adverse impacts to the surface water resources.  
The Project proposes a one-to-one replacement of existing utility structures within an existing and routinely 
maintained utility ROW with nearly flat topography. Project impacts to the surface water resources will largely 
be temporary, in association of use of timber matting to establish access routes and work pads necessary to 
complete the replacements.  Where possible, wetland crossing will be located at the narrowest portion of the 
wetland and/or upland walking trails within the ROW will be followed. Permanent impacts by the Project are 
limited to the square footage required to install the replacement structures. Where possible, structures have 
been shifted out of or further away from wetlands. Following completion of structure replacement and timber 
mat removal, all disturbed substrates will be seeded with an appropriate native seed mix, as necessary, to 
facilitate re-establishment of the vegetation community. Following completion of this Project anticipated 
impacts to the area will be associated with the continued use of the area as a utility ROW, involving periodic 
maintenance of structures and mowing of vegetation, as needed, to maintain the functionality and safety of 
the transmission lines, which has been the case for decades. 
 
D. How the buffer shall be left in a natural state to the extent possible. 
The proposed project will maintain the natural state of surface water buffers to the extent practicable. Most of 
the proposed impacts are temporary, and permanent impact are limited to small areas associated with the 
installation of the utility structures, which are a replacement structures. The access road and work pads 
needed to complete the work will consist of temporary timber matting throughout the Keene portion of the 
Project, minimizing ground disturbance. During construction, appropriate perimeter controls (straw wattle, silt 
fence, etc.) will be implemented, as needed, to protect surface water resources. Restoration methods such as 
seeding with native seed mixes and mulching will be followed, as needed, to return the buffer to pre-
construction conditions. The Project will prepare a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan and associated 



 Eversource T198 Line Project 
City of Keene Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit 

 
 

 

erosion control monitoring will be conducted during and after construction. An environmental monitor will be 
retained to provide erosion control monitoring and advise Eversource on the installation and maintenance of 
erosion control measures during construction and restoration. 
 
E. Discussion of whether the proposed encroachment will result in an adverse impact on the surface water 
resources. 
The surface water resources in the T198 project area in Keene consist of a series of scrub-shrub, emergent, and 
wet meadow wetlands. Those north of the Krif Road are directly abutted by development, including Route 101, 
the Ashuelot Rail Trail, and the Keene State College athletic facilities and are somewhat hydrologically 
separated from the Ashuelot River due to this surrounding development. The wetlands south of Krif Road are 
part of the complex of floodplain wetland that are contiguous to the Ashuelot River, thus have a greater 
hydrological connection to the river, and provide relatively greater functions and values as compared to those 
north of Krif Road. The topography of the Keene portion of the Project is relatively flat, timber matting will be 
used in all areas to minimize soil disturbance, and erosion and sediment controls will be used as needed. Thus, 
the risk of transport of sediment to surface water resources outside of the project area during construction is 
low. All temporarily disturbed areas will be restored to pre-construction conditions following completion of 
structure replacement. No changes in grades or vegetation community are proposed which could permanently 
alter the rate, timing, and/or volume of stormwater runoff and its potential to influence water quality in those 
surface water resources temporarily impacted by or that occur downstream of the Project. The Project will 
result in no permanent changes that would alter or eliminate any of the functions and values currently 
provided by the surface water resources to be temporarily impacted, including wildlife habitat.  
 
Article 21 
In accordance with Article 21, as required on the SWP CUP form, the Project meets Site Development 
Standards as discussed below. 
 
21.2 Drainage & Stormwater Management 
An exemption from the drainage report required under Article 21.2.B is requested on the basis that no changes 
to grades and/or permanent changes to vegetation community and/or coverage in the ROW that could result 
in increased volume or velocity of runoff onto adjacent properties or surface water bodies are proposed. The 
Project is utilizing timber matting to construct all access routes and work areas, thereby minimizing 
disturbance. Erosion and sediment controls will be installed and maintained throughout construction and 
restoration, as needed, to manage any temporary changes in drainage patterns during construction and 
protect the water quality of adjacent resources.  
 
21.3 Sediment & Erosion Control 
The Project will utilize the NHDES Best Management Practices (BMPs) Manual for Utility Maintenance In and 
Adjacent to Wetlands and Waterbodies in New Hampshire (March 2019) and the New Hampshire Stormwater 
Manual as required as part of the NHDES Alteration of Terrain Permit for the Project. In addition, the Project 
will prepare a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan as part of coverage for the Project under the current EPA 
Construction General Permit. Eversource will retain an environmental monitor to complete erosion control 
inspections, advise the team on practices to maintain compliance with water quality standards, and track the 
progress of site restoration.  
 
21.4 Snow Storage & Removal 
Any removal of snow from timber mat access routes and work pads will be completed, if needed, by the 
project contractor. Due to the location of large portions of the Project being overtop surface water areas, 



 Eversource T198 Line Project 
City of Keene Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit 

 
 

 

complete avoidance of pushing certain amounts of snow off the edge of the timber mat access routes and 
work pads is not feasible from a site management perspective. However, development of large snow stockpiles 
will be avoided in wetlands to the extent feasible and will not impact property outside of the ROW.   
 
21.5 Landscaping 
No landscaping is proposed as part of this Project. All disturbed areas will be seeded with an appropriate 
native seed mix and mulched, as needed, to facilitate re-establishment of the pre-construction vegetation 
community in the ROW. 
 
21.6 Screening 
No need for installation of screening has been identified for the proposed Project. The Project consists of the 
replacement of existing utility structures in an existing and routinely maintained utility ROW with no screening 
currently in place.  
 
21.7 Lighting  
No outdoor lighting fixtures are proposed as part of the Project. 
 
21.8 Sewer & Water  
No impacts to existing sewer or water utilities by the Project are anticipated.  Dig Safe and City Department of 
Public Works will be contacted prior to the start of work so ensure any existing utilities are marked out and 
avoided. Known underground utilities identified on access routes will be protected with matting. 
 
21.9 Traffic & Access Management 
The Project is not anticipated to significantly impact traffic capacity and/or safety and no improvements to 
roadways, bridges, signals, or intersections are proposed as part of the Project. Project work areas will be 
accessed via Route 101 and Krif Road and are anticipated to require less than 100 vehicle trips per day. An 
application for Temporary Driveway Access (Encroachment Permit) will be filed with the NH Department of 
Transportation for the access off Route 101.  The portion of Krif Road the Project will access the ROW from is 
not a main thorough fare in the City of Keene, it strictly provides access to Keene State College athletic 
facilities. Flaggers may periodically be utilized on Krif Road at the access point to the ROW to temporarily 
direct traffic when larger pieces of equipment and construction materials are delivered to the project area.   
 
21.10 Filling & Excavation 
All fill and excavation associated with the Project will be associated with installation of the replacement 
structure footings and removal of the existing wooden structure footings. The impacts related to these fill and 
excavation activities will comply with the conditions outlined in the NHDES Standard Dredge & Fill Wetlands 
Permit, NHDES Alteration of Terrain Permit, and Keene Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit for 
the Project.  No excavation is anticipated on City-owned property in the City of Keene. 
 
21.11 Surface Waters & Wetlands 
The Project will comply with all issued federal, state, and City of Keene permit conditions and all relevant 
regulations regarding activities in wetlands and surface water regulations.  
 
21.12 Hazardous & Toxic Materials 
The Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan, to be developed as part of obtaining coverage for the Project under 
the current EPA Construction General Permit, will discuss in detail all anticipated sources of hazardous or toxic 
materials associated with completion of the Project. In general, potential hazardous or toxic materials sources 



 Eversource T198 Line Project 
City of Keene Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit 

 
 

 

on site will include construction equipment fueling activities, minor equipment maintenance, any temporary 
sanitary facilities, and waste storage (incidental trash, demolished existing utility structures, etc). No other 
sources of hazardous or toxic materials are anticipated and the Project is unaware of any existing 
contamination by hazardous or toxic substances on site.  
 
Spill kits will be available at all active work sites in case of spills from fueling and minor maintenance of 
equipment and vehicles. All spills will be cleaned up immediately after discovery, following the manufacturer’s 
recommended methods for spill cleanup.  All demolished existing utility structure materials and any temporary 
sanitary facilities will be removed from the site as part of restoration prior to project close out. 
 
21.13 Noise 
During construction, an increase in noise levels in the area will be required for the necessary use of heavy 
equipment to install the replacement structures. These construction activities will be limited to Monday 
through Saturday from 7 am to 5 pm.  After completion of construction, there will be no change in noise levels 
in the area as compared to pre-construction conditions.  
 
21.14 Architecture & Visual Appearance 
The Project involves the replacement of existing utility poles in an existing and routinely maintained ROW. No 
changes which would significantly alter any viewshed or view corridors are proposed.    
  



 Eversource T198 Line Project 
City of Keene Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit 

 
 

 

Attachment D: Photo Log 
  



 
Photo 1. Proposed Str. 145 work pad in  wetland KW11, viewing northeast from the southwestern corner of the wetland 
towards Str. 145. (10-29-24) 
 

 
Photo 2. Proposed Str. 144 work pad wetland buffer area, viewing northwest. (09-20-24) 
 



 
Photo 3. Proposed  Str. 143 work pad in wetland buffer area, viewing northwest-west. (09-20-24) 

 

 
Photo 4. Proposed Str. 142 work pad in wetland KW12A and wetland buffer area, viewing northwest. (09-20-24) 
 



 
Photo 5. Proposed Str. 141 work pad are in wetlands KW12B and KW12C and wetland buffer area, viewing northwest. (07-
24-24) 
 

 
Photo 6. Proposed Str. 140 work pad in wetland KW12B and wetland buffer area, viewing northwest. (07-24-24) 
 



 
Photo 7. Proposed Str. 139 work pad in wetland KW12B and wetland buffer area, viewing southwest. (07-24-24) 
 

 
Photo 8. Proposed Str. 138 work pad in wetland buffer area, viewing northeast. (07-24-24) 
 



 
Photo 9. Proposed Str. 137 work pad in wetland KW14 and wetland buffer area, viewing northeast. (07-24-24) 
 

 
Photo 10. Proposed Str. 136 work pad in Wetland KW15.3 and wetland buffer area, viewing south. (07-24-24) 
 



 
Photo 11. Proposed Str. 135 work pad in wetland KW15.3 and wetland buffer area, viewing northeast. (07-24-24) 
 

 
Photo 12. Proposed Str. 134 work pad in wetland KW15.3 and wetland buffer area, viewing north. (07-24-24) 
 



 
Photo 13. Overview of the PAB4G portion of wetland KW15.2, viewing north towards Str. 134. No impacts proposed. (08-
07-24) 

 

 
Photo 14. Representative view of  scrub-shrub portion of  wetland KW15.2, viewing south towards Str. 132. (07-31-24) 
 

 
 
 



 Eversource T198 Line Project 
City of Keene Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit 

 
 

 

Attachment E: USGS Locus Map 
  



SWANZEY

KEENE

USGS Map
Eversource T198

Structure
Replacement Project

Keene, Swanzey & Troy

.
0 0.380.19

Miles

Service Layer Credits: Sources: Esri, DeLorme,

1 in equals 0.38 miles

Date: 5/1/2025

J:\Projects\Eversource_T198\MXD\EV_T198_USGS_071724.mxd

Project Area
Municipal Border

1:24,000

Map 1



SWANZEY

MARLBOROUGH

USGS Map
Eversource T198

Structure
Replacement Project

Keene, Swanzey & Troy

.
0 0.380.19

Miles

Service Layer Credits: Sources: Esri, DeLorme,

1 in equals 0.38 miles

Date: 5/1/2025

J:\Projects\Eversource_T198\MXD\EV_T198_USGS_071724.mxd

Project Area
Municipal Border

1:24,000

Map 2



TROY

SWANZEY

MARLBOROUGH

USGS Map
Eversource T198

Structure
Replacement Project

Keene, Swanzey & Troy

.
0 0.380.19

Miles

Service Layer Credits: Sources: Esri, DeLorme,

1 in equals 0.38 miles

Date: 5/1/2025

J:\Projects\Eversource_T198\MXD\EV_T198_USGS_071724.mxd

Project Area
Municipal Border

1:24,000

Map 3



 Eversource T198 Line Project 
City of Keene Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit 

 
 

 

Attachment F: Construction Plans 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Construction Plans for 
City of Keene Permitting

Please note, that while this cover sheet shows the entire scope of the T198 Line Project, only 
those plans sheets pertaining to the scope of work in Keene are provided for this application. All 
impacts both tempoary and permanent will be confined to the existing T198 ROW on parcels 
which Eversource either owns or holds easements.

Owner/Easement Holder Representative: 











Transmission Line T198 Structure Replacement Project 
Rev. May 23, 2025               Construction Notes 

1 
 

Construction Sequence: 

1. Wetland boundaries to be clearly marked prior to the start of construction; Wetlands were 
reviewed/delineated by Normandeau Associates, Inc. Aug/Sept/Oct 2024 and April 2025. The 
wetland delineations were completed in accordance with the criteria described in the U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual Technical Report Y-87-1 (January,1987) 
and the Regional Supplement for the Northcentral and Northeast Region (January, 2012) and 
meet the criteria for wetland delineation in accordance with the NH DES administrative rules 
Env-W t 301.01. 

2. MODIFICATIONS IN ACCESS ROUTES, WORK PAD LOCATIONS OR OTHER WETLANDS IMPACT 
AREAS MUST BE APPROVED BY EVERSOURCE AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH NHDES WETLANDS 
RULES FOR MINIMUM IMPACT:  

ENV-WT 307 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
ENV-WT 313.03 - AVOIDANCE AND MINIMIZATION 
ENV-WT 521 - UTILITY PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS 

3. Sediment and erosion control measures shall be installed in accordance with the plans and 
detail provided, as necessary. 

4. Wetland impacts associated with wetland crossings are required for access between 
structures within the right of way.  Construction activities shall occur during periods of low 
flow. 

5. Adequate precaution shall be exercised to avoid spillage of fuel oils, chemicals, or similar 
substances; no fuels, lubricants, chemicals or similar substances shall be stored beneath trees 
or in the vicinity of any wetlands, river, stream or other body of water; or in the vicinity of 
natural or man-made channels leading thereto.  No power equipment shall be stored, 
maintained, or fueled in any area adjacent to a wetland, river, stream or other body of water. 

6. Remove completely all contamination from any spillage of chemicals or petroleum product 
with complete rehabilitation of the affected area. 

7. Access routes have been selected to prevent degradation of the right-of-way and minimize 
environmental impact. Operations shall be confined to the specified access routes within the 
proposed wetland impact area.  Access routes shall not exceed a 16 foot-width. 

8. Impact to vegetation within wetlands will be limited to the extent necessary to place the 
timber mats where required. 

9. Low growing varieties of vegetation adjacent to wetlands shall be preserved to the extent 
possible.  Stumps and rocks shall not be removed, and there shall be no excavations, fills or 
grading done adjacent to wetlands, unless minor excavations is needed for access. 

10. Timber mats will be used along access routes within and adjacent to wetland areas.  These 
mats are constructed of heavy timbers or composite material, bolted together, and are 
placed end-to-end in the wetland to support heavy equipment.  All timber mats shall be 
placed and removed so as not to cause any ruts, channels or depressions, or otherwise cause 
any undue disturbance to wetlands. 

11. If timber mat BMP is not sufficient due to high water, additional bmp's may include the 
placement of geotextile fabric, 3"-4" stone, and gravel to provide a suitable road bed.  A 
temporary culvert may be required in areas of high flow to maintain hydrologic connectivity.  
All material will be removed from jurisdictional areas after construction completion. 

12. No material shall be placed in any location or in any manner so as to impair surface water 
flow into, through or out of any wetland area.  No installation shall create an impoundment 
that will impede the flow of water or cause flooding. 

13. No material shall be taken from the wetlands area except that which must necessarily be 
removed for the structure or foundation placement or stabilization.  All excess material taken 
from the wetland will be removed from the site. 

14. Any proposed support fills shall be clean gravel and stone, free of waste metal products, 
organic materials and similar debris and shall not exceed the amount permitted.  This 
allowable fill is the only fill that may remain in the wetland after construction.  All cut and fills 
slopes shall be seeded/loamed within 72 hours of achieving finished grade; sooner if heavy 
rains forecasted. 

15. Install new poles in the locations designated on the permitting plans. 
16. Cable installation will be performed in a manner so as to avoid, or limit to the maximum 

extent possible, traversing wetlands with heavy equipment.  In some cases, a helicopter may 
be used during the installation to minimize impacts. 

17. Removal of the old pole will occur once the cable has been installed on the new structure.  
The old structures will be removed from the site. Poles will be cut at the ground surface.  
Footings will be abandoned in place to minimize impacts. 

18. All swamp mats, material, and debris will be removed from the work area upon the 
completion of construction. 

19. Upland disturbed areas shall be restored and stabilized upon completion of construction.  
Work pad restoration should include reducing the work pad to a 30 by 60 foot area, and 
reducing slopes to a maximum of 25%.  Stockpiled material should be spread to reduce any 
unnecessary slopes.  Gravel work pads and slopes should be scarified to a minimum of 3" 
before spreading topsoil/loam. 

20. All temporary wetland impacts will be re-graded to original contours following construction.  
New England erosion control/ restoration mix, available through New England wetland 
plants, Inc., 820 West Street, Amherst, MA 01002, 413-548-8000, or equivalent seed mix shall 
be applied in wetland areas that are not inundated, as necessary. 

21. Sediment and erosion control measures will be evaluated and removed if necessary upon the 
completion of construction. 

Winter Construction Notes: 

1. Proposed vegetated areas which do not exhibit a minimum of 85% vegetative growth by 
October 15th, or which are disturbed after October 15th, shall be stabilized.  Stabilization 
methods shall include seeding and mulch, and installation of erosion control blankets on 
slopes greater than 3:1, and seeding and placing 3 to 4 tons of mulch per acre, secured with 
anchored netting, elsewhere.  The installation of erosion control blankets or mulch and 
netting shall not occur over accumulated snow or frozen ground and shall be completed in 
advance of thaw or spring melt events. 

2. Ditches or swales which do not exhibit a minimum of 85% vegetative growth by October 15th, 
or which are disturbed after October 15th, shall be temporarily stabilized with stone or 
erosion control blankets appropriate for the design flow conditions. 

3. After November 15th, incomplete road or parking surfaces, where work has stopped for the 
winter season, shall be protected with a minimum of 3 inches of crushed gravel (NH DOT 
304.3). 

Erosion Control Notes: 

1. Installation of erosion control grindings and/or silt fences shall be complete prior to the start 
of work in any given area.  Erosion controls shall be used during construction and removed 
when all slopes have a healthy stand of vegetation cover.   

2. An area shall be considered stable if one of the following has occurred: 1) Base course gravels 
have been installed in areas to be paved, 2) A minimum of 85 percent vegetated growth has 
been established, 3) A minimum of 3 inches of non-erosive material such stone or riprap has 
been installed, or 4) erosion control blankets have been properly installed 

3. Note that all cut and fill slopes shall be seeded/loamed within 72 hours of achieving finished 
grade 

4. As required, construct temporary berms, siltation fences, sediment traps, etc. to prevent 
erosion & sedimentation of wetlands. 

5. The work area shall be graded and otherwise shaped in such a manner as to minimize soil 
erosion, siltation of drainage channels, damage to existing vegetation, and damage to 
property outside limits of the work area.  Erosion control grindings will be necessary to 
accomplish this end. 

6. Any stripped topsoil shall be stockpiled, without compaction, and stabilized with BMPs. 

7. Permanent or temporary cover must be in place before the growing season ends.  When 
seeded areas are not mulched, plantings should be made from early spring to May 20 or 
from August 15 to September 15.  No disturbed area shall be left exposed during winter 
months, plant annual ryegrass prior to October 15th. 

8. Erosion controls shall be inspected weekly with the timing of weekly visits adjusted if 
heavy rains/snow melt are forecasted or have occurred. 

9. Timber mats must be removed after one growing season. 
10. Any erosion control matting used shall be wildlife friendly.  No welded plastic webbing, 

netting, or other similar form shall be used in erosion/siltation controls to avoid 
entrapment of snakes and other wildlife within the project area. 

11. Unless otherwise authorized by NHDES, the Applicant shall keep a sufficient quantity of 
erosion control supplies on the site at all times during construction to facilitate an 
expeditious (i.e., within 24 hour) response to any construction related erosion issues on 
the site. 

12. Discharge from dewatering of work areas shall be to sediment basins that are: a) located 
in uplands; b) lined with hay bales or other acceptable sediment trapping liners; and c) 
set back as far as possible from wetlands and surface waters. 

13. Mulch used within any wetland/stream bank restoration areas shall be natural straw or 
equivalent non-toxic, non-seed-bearing organic material. 

14. When using an erosion control mix berm, the berm must be a minimum of 12” high, as 
measured on the uphill side of the barrier, and a minimum of two feet wide at the base. 

General Notes 

1. Base plan provided by Eversource Energy. Eversource Energy provided the utility design. 
2. Site plan is for permitting and construction purposes only and does not represent a 

property boundary survey. 

Plant Protection – General Avoidance and Minimization Measures 

3. Limit removal of vegetation to that necessary for construction of the project. Limit tree 
clearing to the minimum required width to meet safety clearances, leave root systems in 
place, except over underground installations or where other earthwork must be 
conducted. Leave herbaceous and shrub vegetation intact wherever practicable. 

4. Precautions shall be taken to prevent import or transport of soil or seed stock containing 
nuisance or invasive species such as Purple Loosestrife, Knotweed, or Phragmites. The 
contractor responsible for work shall appropriately address invasive species in 
accordance with the NH DOT "Best Management Practices for Roadside Invasive Plants 
(2008)". 

5. To prevent the introduction of invasive plant species to the site, the Applicant's 
contractor(s) shall clean all soils and vegetation from construction equipment and 
matting before such equipment is moved to the site. 

Wildlife Protection – General Avoidance and Minimization Measures 

1. Limit the removal of vegetation to that necessary for construction of the project; this will 
leave associated wildlife habitat as intact as possible. 

2. All erosion control materials used will be wildlife-friendly. No welded plastic webbing, 
netting, or other similar form with openings greater than 1/8-inch shall be used in 
erosion/siltation controls to avoid entrapment of snakes and other wildlife within the 
project area. 

3. Timber matting will be used in all wetland areas and will remain in place for the shortest 
duration possible; if possible, passageways will remain open at the wetland crossing to 
allow for reptiles to cross under the mat-bridge/pathway; matting will remain up to 
several weeks 



2 
 

4. Daily sweeps by contractors for all turtle and snake species will be performed when work 
will occur;  

5. Any observations of listed species will be reported and no wildlife will be harmed; contact 
numbers and fliers will be included on the environmental plans 

6. Wildlife friendly erosion controls will be used; no welded plastic netting will be used; 
7. Erosion controls will be installed, monitored and maintained to protect adjacent upland 

and wetland areas from sedimentation and degradation; disturbed areas will be 
temporarily and permanently stabilized and seeded with a native seed mix; the applicable 
utility maintenance BMPs will be followed 

SPECIFIC RTE PLANT AND NATURAL COMMUNITY BMPS 

New Hampshire Natural Heritage Bureau BMPs and Recommendations (Received 2/18/25): 

1. Exemplary silver maple - false nettle - sensitive fern floodplain forest 
a. Below is a summary of the BMPs and proposed work activities outlined in the 

provided memo that demonstrate avoidance and minimization of the exemplary 
natural community (ENC): 
i. No expansion of the existing cleared ROW is proposed. 

ii. No construction of new access or significant upgrades to new access are propose 
in the vicinity of the ENC. 

iii. Timber mats will be used to establish temporary access routes and work pads in 
order to protect wetland resources. 

iv. Any access outside of the ROW in the vicinity of the ENC will be within existing 
access. 

v. Existing wooden pole butt will be left in place to avoid wetland disturbance. 
vi. All other existing wooden structure materials and components will be completely 

removed from the wetland area and properly disposed of. 
vii. Excess excavated spoils resulting from the installation of new metal structures will 

be contained on the project work pads and properly disposed of outside of the 
wetland. 

viii. Erosion and sediment controls will be installed along the edge of access roads and 
work pads as needed. 

b. There are two potential impacts to the ENC from the proposed work that are 
addressed below: 

i. Some of the existing access outside of the ROW in the vicinity of the ENC may 
need improvements through the application of a top dressing of clean gravel. 
1. As long as all gravel is kept within the access road and excess gravel is not 

dumped into the ENC, there are no anticipated impacts. 
ii. Vegetation maintenance will occur within the maintained ROW. If the below 

recommendations can be adhered to, negative impacts are not anticipated. 
1. Vegetation maintenance is recommended under frozen ground conditions (or 

dry conditions if sustained frozen conditions are not possible) in any areas 
where the ROW passes through the ENC or wetlands that are hydrologically 
connected to the ENC. 

2. If work cannot occur under frozen ground/dry conditions, complete work by 
hand and keep vehicles/equipment on existing gravel access roads wherever 
possible and utilize matting if motorized access is needed to cross wetlands. 

3. Do not place slash in the wetlands to avoid impacting the hydrology of the ENC. 
c. The best way to avoid impacts to the exemplary silver maple - false nettle - sensitive 

fern floodplain forest is to work under frozen ground conditions, however if this is 
not practicable then all the above outlined BMPs will avoid/minimize impacts to the 
exemplary wetland to the greatest extent possible. 

2. Nuttall’s reed grass  

a. NHB recommends the following BMPs to avoid and minimize impacts to Nuttall’s 
reed grass: 

i. Fence off/flag the locations of the rare plants so they are not incidentally 
impacted by work including being run over by vehicles or parked on. 

ii. For any rare plants that are completely unavoidable, timber matting should be 
placed over the rare plants and removed as soon as possible (as indicated in the 
provided memo). 
1. If practicable, matting should not be placed over the plants during the growing 

season (April 1st to November 15th) or for as little of the growing season as 
possible. 

 

SPECIFIC WILDLIFE BMPS 

New Hampshire Fish and Game AoT Permit Conditions in Accordance with Env-Wq 1504.18 – 
Wildlife Protection Notes (Received TBD): 

1. NHFG requests that all work only occur from October 16th – April 14th for T198 
Line existing structures 134 – 101 and 72 – 65.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

 
Description:  
Coir logs, straw wattles, fiber rolls, or SiltSoxx™ consist of compressed weed-free straw fiber or 
other natural material, placed within a photodegradable mesh cylindrical sock. 

Applications: 
• Streambank, wetland, and slope protection  

• Check dam applications 
• Perimeter and stockpile containment 
• Slope stabilization by shortening slope length, reducing runoff velocity, and trapping 

mobile soil particles  
• Provides substrate for plant growth upon decay of fiber roll and protects new 

vegetation growth 

Installation: 
• For slope stabilization, it is critical that coir logs are installed perpendicular to soil 

movement and parallel to the slope contour.  
• If additional length is needed for application, ends should be overlapping at least 6 

inches. 
• If used in slope stabilization, construct trenches half the diameter of the log in which 

to place the roll. Lay the coir log along the trench, snugly fitting it against the soil. 
Ensure no gaps exist between the soil and the fiber roll.  

• Install stakes at least every three feet apart along the length of the roll. Additional 
stakes may be driven on the downslope side of the trenches on highly erosive or very 
steep slopes. 

 

Description:  
Silt fence is a temporary sediment barrier 
consisting of filter fabric attached to supporting 
posts and entrenched into the soil. This barrier 
is installed across or at the toe of a slope to 
intercept and retain small amounts of sediment 
from disturbed or unprotected areas. 

Applications: 
Consider using silt fence barriers where: 
• Flow to the silt fence from a distributed area 
occurs as overland sheet flow 
• Sedimentation can pollute or degrade 
adjacent wetlands or watercourses 
• Sedimentation will reduce the capacity of 
storm drainage systems or adversely affect 
adjacent areas. 
• Silt fence should not be used in areas of 

concentrated flows or across streams, channels, swales, ditches or other drainage 
ways. 

Installation: 

• Install silt fence following the contour of the land as closely as possible. 
• The height of the barrier shall not exceed 36 inches.  
• Posts shall be placed at a maximum of 10 feet apart at the barrier location and 

driven securely into the ground (minimum of 12 inches). 
• A trench shall be excavated approximately 6 inches wide and 6 inches deep along the 

line of posts and upslope of the barrier in accordance with recommendations  
• The filter fabric will extend a minimum of 8 inches into the trench which shall be 

backfilled and the soil compacted over the filter fabric. 
• Fabric barriers shall be removed after the upslope area has been permanently 

stabilized. 
• Filter barriers shall be inspected immediately after each rainfall and at least once 

daily during prolonged rainfall and any required repairs shall be made immediately.  
• Sediment deposits should be removed when they reach approximately one—half the 

height of the barrier. 

 

 

Description: 
Temporary mulching is the 
application of plant residues or 
other suitable materials to the soil 
surface.  Permanent mulching 
consists of the application of long-
term surface cover such as bark, 
woodchips or erosion control mix.  
Permanent mulch can be used as a 
permanent ground cover, an 
overwinter stabilization mulch or 
left to naturalize. 

Mulching reduces erosion 
potential by protecting the exposed soil surface from direct impact by rainfall. 

Considerations: 

• Apply temporary 
mulch within 100 
feet of streams, 
wetlands and in lake 
watersheds within 
seven days of 
exposing soil or prior 
to any storm event. 

• Immediately mulch 
areas that have been 
temporarily or 
permanently seeded, following seeding. 

• For areas that cannot be seeded within the growing season, mulch for over-winter 
protection.  Seed the area at the beginning of the next growing season. 

• Mulch anchoring should be used on slopes with gradients greater than 5% in fall 
(past September 15), and over-winter (October 15 – May 1). 

Installation: 

Hay or Straw Mulches: 

• Use air-dried organic mulches including weed-free hay and straw free of undesirable 
seeds and coarse materials. 

• Application rate should be two bales (70-90 pounds) per 1,000 square feet or 1.5-2 
tons (90-100 bales) per acre to cover 75-90% of the ground surface. 

• Anchor hay or straw mulch to prevent displacement by wind or flowing water using 
jute or biodegradable plastic netting or in some cases, organic tackifier. 

• When mulch is applied to provide protection over winter (past the growing season), 
apply it to a depth of four inches (150-200 pounds of hay or straw per 1,000 square 
feet, or double standard application rate).  Seeding cannot generally be expected to 
grow up through this depth of mulch and will be smothered. If vegetation is desired, 
remove mulch in the springtime and seed and re-mulch the area.



Transmission Line T198 Structure Replacement Project 
Rev. May 23, 2025               Construction Notes 

4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                 
Transmission Line T198 Structure Replacement Project 
Rev. May 23, 2025               Construction Notes 

5 
 

 

 

 



17







LS



















































































EXTERNAL SENDER: Only open links from TRUSTED sources.

From: EMMIT+ Application
To: Liza Sargent
Subject: EMMIT+ Project Notification: Effect Finding rendered for Project 2025PR00638
Date: Monday, June 16, 2025 8:42:38 AM

This is an automated notification sent by the New Hampshire Division of Historical Resources
(NHDHR) from the Enhanced Mapping & Management Information Tool (EMMIT+). Please
do not reply directly to this email as it is an unmonitored account.

Hello,

Project 2025PR00638 - Temporary Wetland Impact adjacent to Ashuelot Court

In accordance with state and federal statutes [New Hampshire RSA 227C:9 and Section 106 of
the National Historic Preservation Act (16 U.S.C. 470)] and with federal Advisory Council on
Historic Preservation regulations, Protection of Historic Properties (36 CFR Part 800), the
New Hampshire Division of Historical Resources/State Historic Preservation Office
(NHSHPO) has reviewed information regarding the above-referenced project.

Based upon this review, no known historic resources appear to be affected by the project.
Therefore, it is the opinion of the NHSHPO that the project will result in No Historic
Properties Affected under 36 CFR Part 800.4(d)(1).

No further consultation is required unless there are any changes in approved plans, the need
for additional work is identified, or an unanticipated discovery occurs. If further
correspondence is required, please refer to the project review number noted above.

To view the Effect Finding letter, please login to EMMIT+ and visit the Attachments tab
within the Project Detail Page. This project can be found in your My Projects tab in Home.

If you feel you have received this email in error or have questions about why you are receiving
this email, please visit the NHDHR web site at https://www.nhdhr.dncr.nh.gov/ or contact Liz
Schneible at Elizabeth.A.Schneible@dncr.nh.gov, 603-271-2813.

Thank you,

Liz Schneible
Program Specialist
Division of Historical Resources
NH Department of Natural & Cultural Resources
172 Pembroke Road, Concord, NH 03301
603.271.2813
Elizabeth.A.Schneible@dncr.nh.gov

mailto:no-reply-emmit@vhb.com
mailto:lsargent@sveassoc.com
https://www.nhdhr.dncr.nh.gov/
mailto:Elizabeth.A.Schneible@dncr.nh.gov
mailto:Elizabeth.A.Schneible@dncr.nh.gov






















































A
s
h

u
e
lo

t 
R

iv
e
r

100 YEAR FLOOD
ELEVATION LINE

ELEV=474.8
SEE NOTE No.4

ZO
N

E X
ZO

N
E AE

ZO
N

E AE

ZO
N

E X

10 YEAR FLOOD LINE
ELEV=473.7
SEE NOTE No.4

RIM: 472.20
INV N: 467.6
INV S:

BENCHMARK
900 Painted Steamer Bonnet Nut
ELEV=477.45'

BENCHMARK
901 Painted Steamer Bonnet Nut
ELEV=478.16'

INV:468.94
15"CMP

RIM: 474.59
INV W:471.1

RIM: 474.48
INV N: 468.0
INV E: 470.6
INV S: 468.0
INV NW: 470.8

RIM: 474.06
INV SE: 470.7

RIM: 475.67
INV W:472.0

RIM: 475.68
INV N: 469.0
INV E:471.4
INV S:468.9

RIM: 475.14
INV: 466.2

RIM: 476.18
INV N: 467.0
INV W: 467.8
INV S: 467.0

1" Pipe
Down 3" (f)

1" Pipe
Down 8" (f)

3/4" Pipe
Up 5" (f)

15
" S

DR
 35

15" HDPE

15
" C

MP
A

s
h

u
e
lo

t 
S

tr
e
e
t

12" CMP

12"CMP

6"
 C

I

2 P
E 

L.P
.

47
1

47
2 473

475

471

474

475

475

S8
°2

8'
44

"W
   

   
   

 1
85

.2
6'

S8
°2

8'
44

"W
   

   
   

 1
91

.6
6'

S81°50'47"E          96.06'

285.71

N81°28'27"W          364.26'

N
5°

47
'3

8"
E 

   
   

   
11

5.
42

'

N
17°43'16"W
38.73'

N19°49'36"W
          101.99'

N
6°11'39"W

          138.64'

[567-001]
3.53 Acres ±

153,745 Sq.Ft.±
376.9' Frontage

[576-012]
MASCOMA BANK

255 West Street
Keene, NH 03431

3011/45

[567-082]
PETER M.
JACQUES

65 Ashuelot Street
Keene, NH 03431

1491/232

[567-81]
DANA

COBURN
81 Ashuelot Street
Keene, NH 03431

3090/773

[567-080]
ANTHONY J.
CAVALIERE

83 Ashuelot Street
Keene, NH 03431

3051/854

[567-079]
ROBERT L.

CUMMINGS JR.
LIVING TRUST
3 Cotton Farm Lane

North Hampton, NH 03862
3264/961

[567-005]
RIVERSIDE ROOTS LLC

92 Ashuelot Street
Keene, NH 03431

3289/1346

[567-004]
KALSAM PROPERTIES LLC

420 Main Street
Keene, NH 03431

3262/1030

[576-003]
SUSAN C. DOYLE REV. TRUST

119 Stearns Road
Keene, NH 03431

2139/393

[576-002]
BARRETT BETH ANN

27 Ashuelot Court
Keene, NH 03431

3035/220

[567-083]
49-51 ASHUELOT ST LLC

PO Box 427
Keene, NH 03431

3143/497

[567-006]
MONADNOCK AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORP

831 Court StreetKeene, NH 034312600/306

[566-002]
CITY OF KEENE
3 Washington Street

Keene, NH 03431
857/538

[566-002]
CITY OF Keene
3 Washington Street

Keene, NH 03431
857/538

Ashuelot CourtPrivate way

1" Pipe
Down 1" (f)

CRB
Up 6" (f) 88.48

S81°50'47"E          374.19'

20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

SEE 2805/630 EXHIBIT B.4

47
6

47
6

476

476

474

47
4 47
5

475

473

476

475

475

47
6

47
7

47
7

47
6

47
6

47
5

475

474

47
7

476

47
7

473

47
4

SEE EASEMENTS #3

LOCATION OF ROADWAY AS
SHOWN ON PLAN REF. No.2 AND
RESERVED AS A ROW IN
630/181. SEE EASEMENTS #3

RIM: 472.57
INV N: 468.2
INV S: 468.1

BYREVISIONDATENO.

Notes
1. THE BEARINGS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE BASED ON A MAGNETIC OBSERVATION PER PLAN

REFERENCE NO.1 AND SERVE ONLY TO DEFINE ANGULAR RELATIONSHIPS.

2. THE BOUNDARY LINES SHOWN ON THIS PLAN WERE CALCULATED FROM BOUNDARY EVIDENCE AND
CONTROL SHOWN ON PLAN REFERENCE NO.1. AND FOUND DURING THE FIELD SURVEY. A BOUNDARY
SURVEY WAS NOT PERFORMED.

3. TOPOGRAPHY SHOWN ON THIS PLAN IS FROM AN ACTUAL FIELD SURVEY BY HUNTLEY SURVEY &
DESIGN, PLLC PERFORMED DURING THE MONTH OF MAY, 2021, SUPPLEMENTED BY POINT CLOUD
DATA OBTAINED FROM NH GRANIT FOR AREAS OUTSIDE THE IMMEDIATE SURVEY LIMITS. THE
VERTICAL DATUM IS NAVD 88 OBTAINED BY CONVERTING THE NGVD 1929 BENCHMARKS INDICATED
ON PLAN REFERENCE No.1. CONTOUR INTERVAL IS ONE (1) FOOT.

4. THE PARCEL SHOWN IS PARTIALLY WITHIN IN ZONE AE, A FEMA SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA WITH
AN ANNUAL 1% CHANCE OF FLOODING, PER FEMA FIS 33005CV001A, SHEET 20P, CROSS SECTIONS BR
& BS, ALSO AS SHOWN ON FEMA FLOOD PANEL 33005C0266E, EFFECTIVELY DATED  MAY 23, 2006. THE
FLOOD HAZARD (100 YEAR FLOOD)  ELEVATION IS 474.8' NADVD88.  THE 10 YEAR FLOOD LINE HAS
BEEN INTERPOLATED FROM THE SAME FIS CROSS SECTIONS TO BE 473.7.

5. WATER ELEVATION AT SHORE OF ASHUELOT RIVER IN THE SURVEYED AREA ON JUNE 18, 2024 WAS
APPROXIMATELY 471.4'

8. JURISDICTIONAL WETLANDS WERE DELINEATED BY HUNTLEY SURVEY & DESIGN DURING THE MONTH
OF AUGUST, 2024 USING THE THREE PARAMETER APPROACH DESCRIBED IN TECHNICAL MANUAL
Y-87-1, THE CORPS OF ENGINEERS 1987 WETLAND DELINEATION MANUAL AND SUPPLEMENTED BY
THE JANUARY 2012, REGIONAL SUPPLEMENT TO THE CORPS OF ENGINEERS WETLAND DELINEATION
MANUAL: NORTHCENTRAL AND NORTHEAST REGION U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS, V.2.

9. UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, STRUCTURES AND FACILITIES HAVE BEEN PLOTTED FROM DATA
OBTAINED FROM FIELD SURVEY OF SURFACE LOCATIONS & INFORMATION SHOWN ON PLAN
REFERENCE No.1 THEIR EXISTENCE MUST BE CONSIDERED APPROXIMATE. THERE MAY BE OTHER
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES THE EXISTENCE OF WHICH ARE NOT KNOWN. THE SIZE AND LOCATION OF
ALL UTILITIES AND STRUCTURES MUST BE VERIFIED PRIOR TO ANY AND ALL CONSTRUCTION. CALL
DIG-SAFE PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

A. WASTEWATER SEWER LINES AND STORM SEWER LINES ARE SHOWN FROM LOCATION OF SURFACE
STRUCTURES AND MEASURED INVERTS.

B. WATER LINES ARE SHOWN FROM LIMITED DATA OBTAINED FROM CITY GIS AND A SINGLE SURFACE
STRUCTURE.

C.GAS LINES ARE SHOWN FROM TIES AND GIS DATA OBTAINED FROM LIBERTY GAS.

D. SUBSURFACE ELECTRIC LINE LOCATIONS WERE NOT INVESTIGATED OR MARKED OUT BY THE
PROPER AUTHORITIES, AND IF THEY EXIST, ARE NOT SHOWN.

Surveyor's Certification
PURSUANT TO RSA 676: 18 III AND RSA 672: 14, I CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY AND PLAT WERE PRODUCED
BY ME OR THOSE UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION FROM A TOTAL STATION AND DATA COLLECTOR
TRAVERSE THAT MEETS OR EXCEEDS NH LAN 500 AND THE ALLOWABLE RELATIVE POSITIONAL
ACCURACY FOR URBAN AREAS AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE IN TABLE 500.1,
"ACCURACY MEASUREMENTS, LOCAL ACCURACY OF CONTROL SUPPORTING THE SURVEY," AND IS BASED
ON INFORMATION RECORDED AT THE CHESHIRE COUNTY REGISTRY OF DEEDS AS REFERENCED HEREON,
INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE CLIENT AND PHYSICAL EVIDENCE FOUND.

Locus Map
NTS

AS
HU

EL
O

T 
RI

VE
R

ASH
U

ELO
T ST

C
O

LO
R

AD
O

 ST
SC

H
O

O
L ST

COURT ST

GILBO AVE

ISLAN
D

 ST
WINCHESTER ST

PROJECT
LOCATION

Keene
New Hampshire

Existing Conditions
LAND OF

JRR Properties LLC
located at

Tax Map Parcel No. 567-001
0 Ashuelot Street, Keene, Cheshire County, New Hampshire

Book 2805, Page 630

Scale 1"= 30'
Surveyed 05/2021          Plan prepared  10/31/2024

Project No. H24-007          Cad File No. H20-007 Subd.dwg

Huntley Survey & Design, PLLC

NH & VT Land Surveying, Wetlands & NH Septic System Design
659 West Road, Temple, NH 03084          (603) 924-1669          www.huntleysurvey.com

.

Owner Certification
WE CERTIFY THAT WE ARE THE CURRENT OWNERS OF THE
TRACTS SHOWN HEREON AND THAT I APPROVE OF THE
SUBDIVISION.

___________________________________
OWNER'S SIGNATURE            DATE

___________________________________
OWNER'S SIGNATURE            DATE

APPROVED BY THE
KEENE PLANNING BOARD

           BY                                                                   CHAIRMAN

           AND                                                              SECRETARY

           ON                                                                                       .

30 0 15 30 60 120

1" = 30'

Graphic Scale

HDS

N

Magnetic
2024

Symbol Legend

STORM SEWER LINE
DRAIN MANHOLE
CATCH BASIN

WATER LINE
CURB STOP
WATER VALVE
HYDRANT

SANITARY SEWER LINE
SEWER CLEANOUT
SEWER MANHOLE

LIGHT POLE

POST/BOLLARD
SIGN

CHAIN LINK FENCE
TREE LINE

IRON PIN/PIPE

EDGE OF PAVEMENT
EDGE OF GRAVEL

SURVEY STATION

DEED VOLUME & PAGE
TAX MAP PARCEL NUMBER

KEENE ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

[1-2-3]
CHESHIRE COUNTY REGISTRY OF DEEDS

Zoning Districts
COM (Commerce)
REQUIREMENTS

MAX HEIGHT 2 STORIES/35'
LOT SIZE 15,000 sf
FRONTAGE 50'

BUILDING SETBACKS
FRONT 20'
SIDE 20'
REAR 20'

MAX BUILDING COVERAGE 80%
MAX IMPERMEABLE COVERAGE 80%
MIN GREEN/OPEN SPACE 20%

Overlay Districts
Surface Water Protection District:

30' SETBACKS FROM SURFACE WATERS

CRB SET  3/18/2025
CAPPED 5/8" REBARCRB

SET
FOUND(f)

(s)

FOR PLANNING BOARD REVIEW
-NOT FOR RECORDING-

Easements

THE SURVEYED PARCEL IS SUBJECT TO THE
FOLLOWING RIGHTS AND EASEMENTS:

1. THE RIGHT OF THE CITY OF KEENE TO MAINTAIN A
DRAINAGE CANAL, COVERED OR ENCLOSED, AS
DEFINED IN 489/402 AND AMENDED IN 650/405,
650/456, 654/268 & 655/324. THE DRAINAGE
EASEMENT IS SHOWN AND CENTERED ON THE
EXISTING DRAINAGE STRUCTURES PER PLAN REF
No.1.

2. THE SURVEYED PARCEL MAY BE SUBJECT TO
RIGHTS RESERVED BY FAULKNER AND COLONY
MFG IN 602/181 (NOW CITY OF KEENE) TO:

a. FLOW THE LOW LANDS UP TO AN ELEVATION
OF 474±. (FLOWAGE)

b. MAINTAIN THE BANK OF THE RIVER.
(MAINTENANCE)

c. ENJOY A RIGHT OF WAY OVER THE ROADWAY
O THE EASTERLY BANK OF THE POND.
(ACCESS)

3. THE RIGHTS OF NET&T & PSNH, AND THEIR
ASSIGNS, FOR DISTRIBUTION LINES AND
APPURTENANCES LOCATED ON OR OVER THE
PARCEL. SEE 612/33. THE DEED REFERS TO POLES
WITH POLE NUMBERS NOT FOUND ON THE
PREMISES BUT DESCRIBED AS BEING NEAR THE
SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY LINE OF ASHUELOT
COURT. THE POLE ON THE PROPERTY AND WIRES
CROSSING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE
SURVEYED PARCEL HAVE BEEN ASSUMED TO BE
THE LOCATION OF THE EASEMENT IN QUESTION.

Plan References

REFERENCES INCLUDE ALL INFORMATION REFERRED TO ON ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PLANS

1. ALTA/ACSM LAND TITLE SURVEY OF MAYO TWO, LLC, ASHUELOT STREET PROPERTY, DATED JUNE
2004; BY ROGER T. MONSELL, CLOUGH HARBOUR & ASSOCIATES LLP (Provided by Client)

2. PLAT OF EMILE J. LEGERE SUBDIVISION, ASHUELOT STREET, KEENE, NH, DATED FEBRUARY 28, 1983,
BY THOMAS W. FLAVIN (Pb.48 Pg.66 CCRD)

3. PART OF FORMER LILLIAN L. COLIVAS PROPERTY OWNED BY JOHN C. CONN & HARLEY M.
CHATTERTON, DATED JANUARY 1959, BY ROY K. PIPER. (Pb.10 Pg.12 CCRD)

4. PLAN OF CITY DRAINAGE DITCH ON PROPERTY OF FAULKNER & COLONY MFG, DATED NOVEMBER
1935 W.E. FAULKNER Jr. (Pb.8 Pg.48 CCRD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C  2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
KED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCRD

AutoCAD SHX Text
123/456



A
s
h

u
e
lo

t 
R

iv
e
r

BENCHMARK
900 Painted Steamer Bonnet Nut
ELEV=477.45'

BENCHMARK
901 Painted Steamer Bonnet Nut
ELEV=478.16'

INV:468.94
15"CMP

1" Pipe
Down 3" (f)

1" Pipe
Down 8" (f)

3/4" Pipe
Up 5" (f)

A
s
h

u
e
lo

t 
S

tr
e
e
t

[Lot 2]
2.445 Acres ±

106,499 Sq.Ft. ±

Frontage
191.66' on Ashuelot Street

[Lot 1]
1.085 Acres ±
47,247 Sq.Ft.±

Frontages
185.26' on Ashuelot Street

S8
°2

8'
44

"W
   

   
   

 1
85

.2
6'

S8
°2

8'
44

"W
   

   
   

 1
91

.6
6'

S81°50'47"E          96.06'

285.71

New Line          N81°12'48"W          228.25'

N81°28'27"W          364.26'

N
5°

47
'3

8"
E 

   
   

   
11

5.
42

'

N
17°43'16"W
38.73'

N19°49'36"W
          101.99'

N
6°11'39"W

          138.64'

BUILDING SETBACK LINE

[576-012]
MASCOMA BANK

255 West Street
Keene, NH 03431

3011/45

[567-082]
PETER M.
JACQUES

65 Ashuelot Street
Keene, NH 03431

1491/232

[567-81]
DANA

COBURN
81 Ashuelot Street
Keene, NH 03431

3090/773

[567-080]
ANTHONY J.
CAVALIERE

83 Ashuelot Street
Keene, NH 03431

3051/854

[567-079]
ROBERT L.

CUMMINGS JR.
LIVING TRUST
3 Cotton Farm Lane

North Hampton, NH 03862
3264/961

[567-005]
RIVERSIDE ROOTS LLC

92 Ashuelot Street
Keene, NH 03431

3289/1346

[567-004]
KALSAM PROPERTIES LLC

420 Main Street
Keene, NH 03431

3262/1030

[576-003]
SUSAN C. DOYLE REV. TRUST

119 Stearns Road
Keene, NH 03431

2139/393

[576-002]
BARRETT BETH ANN

27 Ashuelot Court
Keene, NH 03431

3035/220

[567-083]
49-51 ASHUELOT ST LLC

PO Box 427
Keene, NH 03431

3143/497

[567-006]
MONADNOCK AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORP

831 Court StreetKeene, NH 034312600/306

[566-002]
CITY OF KEENE
3 Washington Street

Keene, NH 03431
857/538

BUILDING SETBACK LINE

SURFACE WATER
PROTECTION
DISTRICT LINE

[566-002]
CITY OF Keene
3 Washington Street

Keene, NH 03431
857/538

Ashuelot CourtPrivate way

1" Pipe
Down 1" (f)

CRB
Up 6" (f) 88.48

S81°50'47"E          374.19'
SEE EASEMENTS #3

LOCATION OF ROADWAY AS
SHOWN ON PLAN REF. No.2 AND
RESERVED AS A ROW IN
630/181. SEE EASEMENTS #3

BERM
INFILTRATION TRENCH

BE
RM

PROPOSED 15" HDPE

DRAINAGE LINE

10.0'±

BERM

10
' 10'

47
0

47
0

47
3

47
3

46
8

46
8

475

475
476476

475

PROPOSED DRAINAGE
SWALE  EASEMENT &

COMPENSATORY FLOOD
STORAGE EASEMENT

~ 10' FROM TOP OF BANK
(473 CONTOUR)

PROPOSED DRAINAGE SWALE
EASEMENT

~ 10' FROM TOP OF SWALE BANK
UP TO TOE OF BERM
(474-475 CONTOUR)

PROPOSED
HEADWALL

40'  W
IDE DRAINAGE EASEMENT

CENTERED ON 15" DRAINAGE LINE

AS CONSTRUCTED

N
e

w
 L

in
e

          N
9

°0
0

'2
4

"W
          1

9
1

.2
5

'
BYREVISIONDATENO.
RJHCHANGE PROPOSED LOT NUMBERS1 1/8/25

Notes
1. THE BEARINGS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE BASED ON A MAGNETIC OBSERVATION PER PLAN

REFERENCE NO.1 AND SERVE ONLY TO DEFINE ANGULAR RELATIONSHIPS.

2. THE BOUNDARY LINES SHOWN ON THIS PLAN WERE CALCULATED FROM BOUNDARY EVIDENCE AND
CONTROL SHOWN ON PLAN REFERENCE NO.1. AND FOUND DURING THE FIELD SURVEY. A BOUNDARY
SURVEY WAS NOT PERFORMED.

3. TOPOGRAPHY SHOWN ON THIS PLAN IS FROM AN ACTUAL FIELD SURVEY BY HUNTLEY SURVEY &
DESIGN, PLLC PERFORMED DURING THE MONTH OF MAY, 2021, SUPPLEMENTED BY POINT CLOUD
DATA OBTAINED FROM NH GRANIT FOR AREAS OUTSIDE THE IMMEDIATE SURVEY LIMITS. THE
VERTICAL DATUM IS NAVD 88 OBTAINED BY CONVERTING THE NGVD 1929 BENCHMARKS INDICATED
ON PLAN REFERENCE No.1. CONTOUR INTERVAL IS ONE (1) FOOT.

4. THE PARCEL SHOWN IS PARTIALLY WITHIN IN ZONE AE, A FEMA SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA WITH
AN ANNUAL 1% CHANCE OF FLOODING, PER FEMA FIS 33005CV001A, SHEET 20P, CROSS SECTIONS BR
& BS, ALSO AS SHOWN ON FEMA FLOOD PANEL 33005C0266E, EFFECTIVELY DATED  MAY 23, 2006. THE
FLOOD HAZARD (100 YEAR FLOOD)  ELEVATION IS 474.8' NADVD88.  THE 10 YEAR FLOOD LINE HAS
BEEN INTERPOLATED FROM THE SAME FIS CROSS SECTIONS TO BE 473.7.

5. WATER ELEVATION AT SHORE OF ASHUELOT RIVER IN THE SURVEYED AREA ON JUNE 18, 2024 WAS
APPROXIMATELY 471.4'

8. JURISDICTIONAL WETLANDS WERE DELINEATED BY HUNTLEY SURVEY & DESIGN DURING THE MONTH
OF AUGUST, 2024 USING THE THREE PARAMETER APPROACH DESCRIBED IN TECHNICAL MANUAL
Y-87-1, THE CORPS OF ENGINEERS 1987 WETLAND DELINEATION MANUAL AND SUPPLEMENTED BY
THE JANUARY 2012, REGIONAL SUPPLEMENT TO THE CORPS OF ENGINEERS WETLAND DELINEATION
MANUAL: NORTHCENTRAL AND NORTHEAST REGION U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS, V.2.

9. THE PROPOSED LOTS WILL BE SERVICED BY MUNICIPAL SEWER AND WATER.

10. UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, STRUCTURES AND FACILITIES HAVE BEEN PLOTTED FROM DATA
OBTAINED FROM FIELD SURVEY OF SURFACE LOCATIONS & INFORMATION SHOWN ON PLAN
REFERENCE No.1 THEIR EXISTENCE MUST BE CONSIDERED APPROXIMATE. THERE MAY BE OTHER
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES THE EXISTENCE OF WHICH ARE NOT KNOWN. THE SIZE AND LOCATION OF
ALL UTILITIES AND STRUCTURES MUST BE VERIFIED PRIOR TO ANY AND ALL CONSTRUCTION. CALL
DIG-SAFE PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

A. WASTEWATER SEWER LINES AND STORM SEWER LINES ARE SHOWN FROM LOCATION OF SURFACE
STRUCTURES AND MEASURED INVERTS.

B. WATER LINES ARE SHOWN FROM LIMITED DATA OBTAINED FROM CITY GIS AND A SINGLE SURFACE
STRUCTURE.

C.GAS LINES ARE SHOWN FROM TIES AND GIS DATA OBTAINED FROM LIBERTY GAS.

D. SUBSURFACE ELECTRIC LINE LOCATIONS WERE NOT INVESTIGATED OR MARKED OUT BY THE
PROPER AUTHORITIES, AND IF THEY EXIST, ARE NOT SHOWN.

Locus Map
NTS

AS
HU

EL
O

T 
RI

VE
R

ASH
U

ELO
T ST

C
O

LO
R

AD
O

 ST
SC

H
O

O
L ST

COURT ST

GILBO AVE

ISLAN
D

 ST
WINCHESTER ST

PROJECT
LOCATION

Keene
New Hampshire

Two Lot Subdivision
LAND OF

JRR Properties LLC
located at

Tax Map Parcel No. 567-001
0 Ashuelot Street, Keene, Cheshire County, New Hampshire

Book 2805, Page 630

Scale 1"= 30'
Surveyed 05/2021          Plan prepared  10/31/2024

Project No. H24-007          Cad File No. H20-007 Subd.dwg

Huntley Survey & Design, PLLC

NH & VT Land Surveying, Wetlands & NH Septic System Design
659 West Road, Temple, NH 03084          (603) 924-1669          www.huntleysurvey.com

.

30 0 15 30 60 120

1" = 30'

Graphic Scale

HDS

N

Magnetic
 2024

Surveyor's Certification
PURSUANT TO RSA 676: 18 III AND RSA 672: 14, I CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY AND PLAT WERE PRODUCED
BY ME OR THOSE UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION FROM A TOTAL STATION AND DATA COLLECTOR
TRAVERSE THAT MEETS OR EXCEEDS NH LAN 500 AND THE ALLOWABLE RELATIVE POSITIONAL
ACCURACY FOR URBAN AREAS AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE IN TABLE 500.1,
"ACCURACY MEASUREMENTS, LOCAL ACCURACY OF CONTROL SUPPORTING THE SURVEY," AND IS BASED
ON INFORMATION RECORDED AT THE CHESHIRE COUNTY REGISTRY OF DEEDS AS REFERENCED HEREON,
INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE CLIENT AND PHYSICAL EVIDENCE FOUND.

Owner Certification
WE CERTIFY THAT WE ARE THE CURRENT OWNERS OF THE
TRACTS SHOWN HEREON AND THAT I APPROVE OF THE
SUBDIVISION.

___________________________________
OWNER'S SIGNATURE            DATE

___________________________________
OWNER'S SIGNATURE            DATE

APPROVED BY THE
KEENE PLANNING BOARD

           BY                                                                   CHAIRMAN

           AND                                                              SECRETARY

           ON                                                                                       .

Symbol Legend

STORM SEWER LINE
DRAIN MANHOLE
CATCH BASIN

WATER LINE
CURB STOP
WATER VALVE
HYDRANT

SANITARY SEWER LINE
SEWER CLEANOUT
SEWER MANHOLE

LIGHT POLE

POST/BOLLARD
SIGN

CHAIN LINK FENCE
TREE LINE

IRON PIN/PIPE

EDGE OF PAVEMENT
EDGE OF GRAVEL

SURVEY STATION

DEED VOLUME & PAGE
TAX MAP PARCEL NUMBER

KEENE ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

[1-2-3]
CHESHIRE COUNTY REGISTRY OF DEEDS

CRB SET  3/18/2025
CAPPED 5/8" REBARCRB

SET
FOUND(f)

(s)

FOR PLANNING BOARD REVIEW
-NOT FOR RECORDING-

Zoning Districts
COM (Commerce)
REQUIREMENTS

MAX HEIGHT 2 STORIES/35'
LOT SIZE 15,000 sf
FRONTAGE 50'

BUILDING SETBACKS
FRONT 20'
SIDE 20'
REAR 20'

MAX BUILDING COVERAGE 80%
MAX IMPERMEABLE COVERAGE 80%
MIN GREEN/OPEN SPACE 20%

Overlay Districts
Surface Water Protection District:

30' SETBACKS FROM SURFACE WATERS

Easements

THE SURVEYED PARCEL IS SUBJECT TO THE
FOLLOWING RIGHTS AND EASEMENTS:

1. THE RIGHT OF THE CITY OF KEENE TO MAINTAIN A
DRAINAGE CANAL, COVERED OR ENCLOSED, AS
DEFINED IN 489/402 AND AMENDED IN 650/405,
650/456, 654/268 & 655/324. THE DRAINAGE
EASEMENT IS SHOWN AND CENTERED ON THE
EXISTING DRAINAGE STRUCTURES PER PLAN REF
No.1.

2. THE SURVEYED PARCEL MAY BE SUBJECT TO
RIGHTS RESERVED BY FAULKNER AND COLONY
MFG IN 602/181 (NOW CITY OF KEENE) TO:

a. FLOW THE LOW LANDS UP TO AN ELEVATION
OF 474±. (FLOWAGE)

b. MAINTAIN THE BANK OF THE RIVER.
(MAINTENANCE)

c. ENJOY A RIGHT OF WAY OVER THE ROADWAY
O THE EASTERLY BANK OF THE POND.
(ACCESS)

3. THE RIGHTS OF NET&T & PSNH, AND THEIR
ASSIGNS, FOR DISTRIBUTION LINES AND
APPURTENANCES LOCATED ON OR OVER THE
PARCEL. SEE 612/33. THE DEED REFERS TO POLES
WITH POLE NUMBERS NOT FOUND ON THE
PREMISES BUT DESCRIBED AS BEING NEAR THE
SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY LINE OF ASHUELOT
COURT. THE POLE ON THE PROPERTY AND WIRES
CROSSING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE
SURVEYED PARCEL HAVE BEEN ASSUMED TO BE
THE LOCATION OF THE EASEMENT IN QUESTION.

Plan References

REFERENCES INCLUDE ALL INFORMATION REFERRED TO ON ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PLANS

1. ALTA/ACSM LAND TITLE SURVEY OF MAYO TWO, LLC, ASHUELOT STREET PROPERTY, DATED JUNE
2004; BY ROGER T. MONSELL, CLOUGH HARBOUR & ASSOCIATES LLP (Provided by Client)

2. PLAT OF EMILE J. LEGERE SUBDIVISION, ASHUELOT STREET, KEENE, NH, DATED FEBRUARY 28, 1983,
BY THOMAS W. FLAVIN (Pb.48 Pg.66 CCRD)

3. PART OF FORMER LILLIAN L. COLIVAS PROPERTY OWNED BY JOHN C. CONN & HARLEY M.
CHATTERTON, DATED JANUARY 1959, BY ROY K. PIPER. (Pb.10 Pg.12 CCRD)

4. PLAN OF CITY DRAINAGE DITCH ON PROPERTY OF FAULKNER & COLONY MFG, DATED NOVEMBER
1935 W.E. FAULKNER Jr. (Pb.8 Pg.48 CCRD)

RJHAdd proposed Easements2 5/14/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
C  2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
KED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCRD

AutoCAD SHX Text
123/456

AutoCAD SHX Text
W



SF

SF

SF

468.0

468.0

BENCHMARK
901 Painted Steamer Bonnet Nut
ELEV=478.16'

47
5

471

476

WF A1

WF A2

WF A4

WF A5

WF A6 - A1

WF B4

WF B9

WF B10

WF B11

WF B12

475

475

471

[567-006]
MONADNOCK AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORP

831 Court StreetKeene, NH 034312600/306

[566-002]
CITY OF Keene
3 Washington Street

Keene, NH 03431
857/538

[567-001]
JRR PROPERTIES LLC

C/O 1911 Office LLC
P.O. Box 323

Keene, NH 03431
2805/630

470.0

472.0

475.0

470.0

468.0

SF

SF

SF

BENCHMARK
901 Painted Steamer Bonnet Nut
ELEV=478.16'

47
5

471

476

WF A1

WF A2

WF A4

WF A5

WF A6 - A1

WF B4

WF B9

WF B10

WF B11

WF B12

475

475

471

[567-006]
MONADNOCK AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORP

831 Court StreetKeene, NH 034312600/306

[566-002]
CITY OF Keene
3 Washington Street

Keene, NH 03431
857/538

[567-001]
JRR PROPERTIES LLC

C/O 1911 Office LLC
P.O. Box 323

Keene, NH 03431
2805/630

DATE:

PROJ. #:

TEMPORARY
WETLAND
IMPACTS PLAN

GRAPHIC SCALE 1" =

0 5' 10' 20'

10'

D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 P
:\P

ro
je

ct
\N

H
 P

R
O

JE
C

TS
\K

27
81

 S
he

ld
on

 P
en

no
ye

r A
rc

hi
te

ct
s\

D
w

g\
K2

78
1 

SI
TE

 5
-1

-2
02

5.
dw

g 
  J

un
 1

3,
  2

02
5 

- 1
1:

02
am

c

N
O

.
R

EV
IS

IO
N

D
AT

E
D

W
N

C
H

K

SHEET

N

MONADNOCK CONSERVANCY
HEADQUARTERS

MONADNOCK CONSERVANCY
KEENE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
15 EAGLE CT, 2ND FLOOR

-OCT- 2410

K2781K2781

DESIGN: LPS
DRAWN: LPS

SVE 2025

Engineering
Planning
Landscape Architecture
Surveying

SVE Associates
P.O. Box 1818
439 West River Road
Brattleboro, VT 05302
T   802.257.0561
F   802.257.0721
www.sveassoc.com

1
1

Locus Map
NTS

AS
HU

EL
O

T 
RI

VE
R

ASH
U

ELO
T ST

C
O

LO
R

AD
O

 ST
SC

H
O

O
L ST

COURT ST

GILBO AVE

ISLAN
D

 ST

WINCHESTER ST

PROJECT
LOCATION

Keene
New Hampshire

Symbol Legend

STORM SEWER LINE
DRAIN MANHOLE
CATCH BASIN

SD

W WATER LINE
CURB STOP
WATER VALVE
HYDRANT

SANITARY SEWER LINE
SEWER CLEANOUT
SEWER MANHOLE

S

LIGHT POLE

POST/BOLLARD
SIGN

CHAIN LINK FENCE
TREE LINE

IRON PIN/PIPE

EDGE OF PAVEMENT
EDGE OF GRAVEL

SURVEY STATION

DEED VOLUME & PAGE
TAX MAP PARCEL NUMBER

KEENE ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

[1-2-3]
CHESHIRE COUNTY REGISTRY OF DEEDS

CRB SET  3/18/2025
CAPPED 5/8" REBARCRB

SET
FOUND(f)

(s)

W

RAILROAD SPIKE SET  3/18/2025

EDGE OF WETLANDS

16
" M

IN
.

16
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CITY  STORM DRAIN, TO BE REMOVED AND REPLACED WITH RIPARIAN SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RIPARIAN DRAINAGE SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  TREELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED  TREELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' WIDE  CITY DRAINAGE EASEMENT, RECORDED IN VOLUME 779 PAGE 111-113 AND SHOWN ON PLAN TITLED "HOUSING FOR ELDERLY, KEENE, NEW HAMPSHIRE" DEVELOPED BY EMILE J. LEGERE, INC. FOR KEENE HOUSING AUTHORITY DATED DECEMBER 1, 1969

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY TIMBER MATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMOPORARY DEWATERING HOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURBID WATER DISCHARGE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY PUMPED BYPASS HOSE TO EXISTING CATCH BASIN TO REMAIN (CLEAN WATER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY WETLAND IMPACTS, 237 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY SANDBAG DAM, SUMP PUMP LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRAINAGE SWALE  EASEMENT & COMPENSATORY FLOOD STORAGE EASEMENT ~ 10' FROM TOP OF BANK (473 CONTOUR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CITY  STORM DRAIN, TO BE REMOVED AND REPLACED WITH RIPARIAN SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN: 474.8  474.8 10 YEAR FLOODPLAIN: 473.7: 473.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPROPOSED GRADING & DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UEXISTING GRADING & DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
KED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCRD

AutoCAD SHX Text
123/456

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 1. THE PURPOSE OF THIS PROJECT IS TO REMOVE THE EXISTING THE PURPOSE OF THIS PROJECT IS TO REMOVE THE EXISTING CITY CULVERT THAT IS IN FAILURE AND REPLACE IT WITH A RIPARIAN DRAINAGE SWALE.  2. CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE DONE DURING THE DRY. IF CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE DONE DURING THE DRY. IF NECESSARY, SAND BAG CULVERT INLET AND PUMP WATER AROUND CONSTRUCTION. 3. USE NEW ENGLAND WETLAND SEED MIX TO REESTABLISH USE NEW ENGLAND WETLAND SEED MIX TO REESTABLISH VEGETATION IN WETLAND DISTURBANCE AREAS, BY NEW ENGLAND WETLAND PLANTS, INC. OR EQUAL, IF NECESSARY. 4. THE WATER QUALITY CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE THE WATER QUALITY CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE COMPRISED OF WILDLIFE-FRIENDLY MATERIALS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ENV-WT307.03(C). 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO HARDWOOD POSTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE ATTACHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
@ 6-10' O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTION OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR FABRIC INTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL, 6" MIN.  BACKFILL AND TAMP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEWATERING NOTES: 1. THE WORK AREA SHALL BE THE WORK AREA SHALL BE DE-WATERED TO MINIMIZE IMPACTS TO WATER QUALITY BY: A. DIVERTING CLEAN STREAM DIVERTING CLEAN STREAM FLOW AROUND THE WORK AREA DURING CONSTRUCTION AND, B. PUMPING TURBID WATER FROM PUMPING TURBID WATER FROM WITHIN THE WORK AREA TO AN UPLAND AREA WHERE IT CAN INFILTRATE AND BE FILTERED PRIOR TO FLOWING BACK TO THE WETLAND OR SURFACE WATER. 2. TURBID WATER SHALL BE TURBID WATER SHALL BE DISCHARGED IN AN UPLAND AREA AT LEAST 20 FEET FROM WETLANDS OR SURFACES WATERS. THE DE-WATERING DISCHARGE AREA SHALL BE ENCIRCLED BY SEDIMENT BARRIERS (E.G. SILT FENCE) ON ITS DOWN SLOPE SIDE AS NEEDED TO CREATE TEMPORARY PONDING OF TURBID WATER FOR INCREASED INFILTRATION, FINE SEDIMENT DEPOSITION AND FILTRATION. 3. REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY DE-WATERING FACILITIES IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION AND RESTORE ALL DISTURBED AREAS TO PRE-PROJECT CONDITIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USUMP PUMP PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"±   PERFORATED PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILLED WITH  " STONE34" STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO SILT BAG LOCATED IN UPLANDS AT LEAST 20' FROM ANY WETLAND OR SURFACE WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE  SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEC PREMIER  STRAW WATTLE, OR EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD STAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USTRAW WATTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEDIMENT & EROSION CONTROL NOTES:  1. CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE DONE DURING THE DRY. IF NECESSARY, SAND BAG CULVERT CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE DONE DURING THE DRY. IF NECESSARY, SAND BAG CULVERT INLET AND PUMP WATER AROUND CONSTRUCTION. 2. INSTALL ALL SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONTROL MEASURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH INSTALL ALL SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONTROL MEASURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S DIRECTIONS OR DETAILS PROPOSED. PERIMETER CONTROLS MUST BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO EARTH MOVING OPERATIONS. 3. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL EROSION CONTROL.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL EROSION CONTROL.  4. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSPECT AND REPAIR ALL SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONTROL CONTRACTOR SHALL INSPECT AND REPAIR ALL SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONTROL MEASURES DAILY WHILE UNDER CONSTRUCTION. THEN NOT LESS THAN ONCE A WEEK UNTIL ALL UPHILL SOILS ARE WELL ESTABLISHED. 5. SEED AND MULCH ALL FINISH GRADED AREAS WITHIN 72 HOURS OF FINISH GRADING. SEED AND MULCH ALL FINISH GRADED AREAS WITHIN 72 HOURS OF FINISH GRADING. 6. SEDIMENT CONTROLS AND/OR SILT FENCES SHALL BE REPLACED WHEN CLOGGED AND SEDIMENT CONTROLS AND/OR SILT FENCES SHALL BE REPLACED WHEN CLOGGED AND NO LONGER FUNCTIONAL. 7. SEEDING OF ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE COMPLETED NOT LATER THAN OCTOBER SEEDING OF ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE COMPLETED NOT LATER THAN OCTOBER 15TH. 8. ALL SOIL SLOPES STEEPER THAN 3:1 SHALL BE COVERED WITH EROSION CONTROL ALL SOIL SLOPES STEEPER THAN 3:1 SHALL BE COVERED WITH EROSION CONTROL FABRIC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIMBER MAT NOTES:  1. TIMBER MATS SHALL BE USED AS NECESSARY TO PROTECT THE WETLAND AND TIMBER MATS SHALL BE USED AS NECESSARY TO PROTECT THE WETLAND AND PROVIDE ACCESS TO THE CONSTRUCTION. 2. IF NECESSARY, WOODY VEGETATION (TREES, SHRUBS, ETC.) SHALL BE CUT AT OR IF NECESSARY, WOODY VEGETATION (TREES, SHRUBS, ETC.) SHALL BE CUT AT OR ABOVE THE GROUND LEVEL AND NOT UPROOTED IN ORDER TO PREVENT DISRUPTION TO THE WETLAND SOIL STRUCTURE AND TO ALLOW STUMP SPROUTS TO RE-VEGETATE THE WORK AREA. 3. TIMBER MATS SHALL BE MONITORED TO ASSURE CORRECT FUNCTIONING OF MATS. TIMBER MATS SHALL BE MONITORED TO ASSURE CORRECT FUNCTIONING OF MATS. INSPECT AFTER USE. MATS WHICH BECOME COVERED WITH SOILS OR CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS SHOULD BE CLEANED AND THE MATERIALS REMOVED AND DISPOSED OF IN AN UPLAND LOCATION. 4. TIMBER MATS SHALL BE REMOVED AS SOON AS THE WORK IS COMPLETE. MATTING TIMBER MATS SHALL BE REMOVED AS SOON AS THE WORK IS COMPLETE. MATTING SHOULD BE REMOVED BY "BACKING OUT THE THE SITE, REMOVING MATS ONE AT A TIME. MATS SHOULD BE CLEANED BEFORE RE-USE. 5. TIMBER MATS SHALL NOT BE LEFT IN PLACE LONGER THAN ONE GROWING SEASON. TIMBER MATS SHALL NOT BE LEFT IN PLACE LONGER THAN ONE GROWING SEASON. 6. MATTED AREAS WITHIN WETLAND SHALL BE RESTORED TO THEIR ORIGINAL MATTED AREAS WITHIN WETLAND SHALL BE RESTORED TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION AND ELEVATION. THIS MAY INVOLVE NATURAL RE-VEGETATION FROM EXISTING ROOT AND SEED STOCK OF NATIVE PLANT SPECIES. CONDITIONS MY WARRANT PLANTING AND THE BROADCAST OF A WETLAND SEED MIX OVER THE MATTED AREA TO SUPPLEMENT THE EXISTING SEED STOCK. SEED MIXES AND VEGETATION SHALL CONTAIN ONLY PLANT SPECIES NATIVE TO NEW HAMPSHIRE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEQUENCE OF WORK: 1. INSTALL SILT FENCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S DIRECTIONS IN LOCATIONS DETAILED ON THIS PLAN INSTALL SILT FENCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S DIRECTIONS IN LOCATIONS DETAILED ON THIS PLAN OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. INSTALL TIMBER MATS. 2. CLEAR AND GRUB THE RIPARIAN DRAINAGE SWALE AREA. CLEAR AND GRUB THE RIPARIAN DRAINAGE SWALE AREA. 3. INSTALL TEMPORARY SANDBAG DAM AND SUMP PUMP, TURBID WATER DISCHARGE AREA. INSTALL TEMPORARY SANDBAG DAM AND SUMP PUMP, TURBID WATER DISCHARGE AREA. 4. REMOVE EXISTING CITY CULVERT AND REPLACE WITH RIPARIAN DRAINAGE SWALE PER PERMITTED PLAN. REMOVE EXISTING CITY CULVERT AND REPLACE WITH RIPARIAN DRAINAGE SWALE PER PERMITTED PLAN. 5. LOAM AND SEED DISTURBED AREAS, STABILIZE SLOPES WITH MATTING WHERE SPECIFIED. LOAM AND SEED DISTURBED AREAS, STABILIZE SLOPES WITH MATTING WHERE SPECIFIED. 6. REMOVE SILT FENCE AFTER ALL DISTURBED SOILS ARE STABILIZED.REMOVE SILT FENCE AFTER ALL DISTURBED SOILS ARE STABILIZED.



From: bob milliken.us
To: Mari Brunner; Councilor Robert Williams
Subject: Invasives on Court and elm street
Date: Monday, June 30, 2025 2:02:03 PM
Attachments: wild parsnips.pdf

Hi Mari and Bobby,

I have attached a document for the site I cleaned up this weekend. The wild parsnips had
grown faster that I thought and i wanted to clear it before more seed dropped. I have included
a letting with pictures of what I did. 

This site will have to be watched for a few years.

Regarding seed germination:

Wild parsnip seeds are known to remain viable in the soil for about four years.

Some sources suggest that the seeds can remain viable for at least four years.

While some sources mention a lifespan of up to five years, it's generally accepted that the
seeds can survive in the seed bank for around four years.

The seeds typically germinate in the spring, but some may germinate in late summer or
early fall.

Seedling mortality is high, with less than 1% of seedlings surviving to maturity. 

Bob Milliken

If your not changing your choosing.

mailto:bob@milliken.us
mailto:mbrunner@keenenh.gov
mailto:rwilliams@keenenh.gov



 
Mari and Bobby, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I have taken the steps to clear the wild parsnips from the site I had found near my house.  
 
I was worried they were in bloom and did not want more seeds to drop. The seeds can take up 
to 4 years to germinate. Knowing this site is there now I think we need to monitor it to make 
sure it does not spread. I found some downstream (as the snow plow plows) on court street 
near the hospital housing. Only 4 small plants. The taller mature plants are easy to remove by 
pulling them out root and all but the very small plants need to be worked out with a tool or the 
stem breaks off and leaves the carrot like root.  
 
I have pictures of the area and the 3 very large bags I left at the site to hopefully kill them off. I 
was wondering how I should dispose of the them? Also, if the city could now move that area 
while the smaller plants are not in seed it would give us a better chance of getting ahead of 
them.  
 
Let me know who I can contact or if you are willing to do so.  
 
 
 


 







 


Seed heads not quite mature.  







 


 


Infected area on court and near Elm street  


 


 







 


 


Full bundle of wild parsnips.  


 







 


 


3 full 55 gallon bags left at site.  


 


 







 
Mari and Bobby, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I have taken the steps to clear the wild parsnips from the site I had found near my house.  
 
I was worried they were in bloom and did not want more seeds to drop. The seeds can take up 
to 4 years to germinate. Knowing this site is there now I think we need to monitor it to make 
sure it does not spread. I found some downstream (as the snow plow plows) on court street 
near the hospital housing. Only 4 small plants. The taller mature plants are easy to remove by 
pulling them out root and all but the very small plants need to be worked out with a tool or the 
stem breaks off and leaves the carrot like root.  
 
I have pictures of the area and the 3 very large bags I left at the site to hopefully kill them off. I 
was wondering how I should dispose of the them? Also, if the city could now move that area 
while the smaller plants are not in seed it would give us a better chance of getting ahead of 
them.  
 
Let me know who I can contact or if you are willing to do so.  
 
 
 

 



 

Seed heads not quite mature.  



 

 

Infected area on court and near Elm street  

 

 



 

 

Full bundle of wild parsnips.  

 



 

 

3 full 55 gallon bags left at site.  

 

 




	Agenda
	2025_06_16_CONS_Minutes_Edited
	Eversource T198 Keene SWP CUP Application_revised
	Attachment A: Conditional Use Permit Application Form
	Attachment B: Discussion of Articles 11.6.2 and 21 from the Keene LDC
	Attachment C: List of Abutters and Abutter Mailing Labels
	Attachment D: Photo Log
	Attachment E: USGS Locus Map
	Attachment F: Construction Plans
	ATT E_T198_USGS_050125_24kScale.pdf
	EV_T198_USGS_5-25_1
	EV_T198_USGS_5-25_2
	EV_T198_USGS_5-25_3


	K2781 TEMP WETLAND IMPACTS.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	WETLAND


	H24-007 Subd with Ease -Final.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	H24-007 Subd with Ease-Existing Conditions
	H24-007 Subd with Ease-Proposed Conditions





